
Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, MARCH 04, 2024 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the minutes of the Regular City Council meeting of February 19, 2024. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 
business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

1. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2024 
Street Restoration Project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 02/24/2024) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the 2024 Street Restoration Project. 

Old Business 

2. Pass Ordinance #3049, amending Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to the Cemetery Section, upon its third & final consideration. 

3. Pass Ordinance #3050, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicle, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to the speed limit on certain portions of West 27th Street, upon its third & final consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

4. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of February 19, 2024 relative to the 
following items: 
a) Railroad Crossing Elimination (RCE) Grant Application 2024 – Potential regional application: 

1



Page 2 of 4 

Cedar Falls, Butler County, & Shell Rock. 
b) Budget Presentation. 

5. Approve the application of Casey's #4553, 1525 W. Ridgeway Avenue, for a 
cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit. 

6. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Deringer’s Public Parlor, 314 ½ Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) The Stuffed Olive and Roxxy, 314-316 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service -
renewal. 
c) Hillstreet News & Tobacco, 2217 College Street, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 
d) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street, Class B retail alcohol - change in ownership. 
e) Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, Class B retail alcohol - change in ownership. 
f) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive, Class B retail alcohol - change in ownership. 
g) Kwik Spirits, 4116 University Avenue, Class E retail alcohol - change in ownership. 
h) Patton, 317 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - new. 
i) Casey’s, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class E retail alcohol - new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

7. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

8. Resolution approving local match for Housing Trust Fund program in the amount of $2,620.00. 

9. Resolution in support of a grant application to the Iowa Arts Council relative to Hearst Center cultural 
programs. 

10. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with Brad Jacobson 
relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

11. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with Brent Dahlstrom 
relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project. 

12. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with Cedar Valley 
Arboretum at Hawkeye Community College relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC 
mascots Panthers on Parade Project. 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with Cedar Valley 
Dental Associates relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on 
Parade Project. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with College Hill 
Partnership relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade 
Project. 

15. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with Community Bank 
& Trust relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade 
Project.  

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with First Bank relative 
to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with GreenState Credit 
Union relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with Hansen’s Dairy 
relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with Hy-Vee relative to 
Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project 

2



Page 3 of 4 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with JCAM Properties 
LLC, relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project. 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with John Deere 
relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with Martin Bros. 
relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

23. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with Peters 
Construction Corp. relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on 
Parade Project. 

24. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with SCHEELS relative 
to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

25. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with Soifer Family 
McDonald's relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade 
Project. 

26. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with Structure Real 
Estate relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project. 

27. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with The Brass Tap 
relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project. 

28. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with the University of 
Northern Iowa relative to relative to TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

29. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a sponsorship agreement with UNITE Credit 
Union relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project. 

30. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with Urban Pie relative 
to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Project.  

31. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a sponsorship agreement with Veridian Credit 
Union relative to relative to TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

32. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a sponsorship agreement with Western Home 
Communities relative to TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

33. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sponsorship Agreement with Witham Auto 
relative to Panthers on Parade Sponsorship for the TC mascots Panthers on Parade Community 
Pride Project. 

34. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Temporary Encroachment Agreement with the 
College Hill Neighborhood Association d/b/a College Hill Partnership relative to TC mascots for the 
Panthers on Parade Project. 

35. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Temporary Encroachment Agreement with 
Community Bank & Trust relative to TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

36. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Temporary Encroachment Agreement with 
Structure Real Estate relative to TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

37. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Temporary Encroachment Agreement with 
Burtis Core, Inc., d/b/a The Brass Tap relative to TC mascots for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

38. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Planned Residential (RP)  
Zoning District Development Procedures Agreement for Panther West with Panther Farms, LLC 

3



Page 4 of 4 

relative to 54.79 Acres of land located North of Aldrich Elementary School and South of West 
Greenhill Road. 

39. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of a Swift Current Mitigation Grant application to 
Iowa Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (IDHSEM) for hazard 
mitigation relative to purchasing repetitive loss (RL) and severe repetitive loss (SRL) properties in 
northern Cedar Falls. 

40. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Boulder Contracting, 
LLC for the 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 1. 

41. Resolution approving the Final Statement of Expenditures for the 2023 Sidewalk Assessment 
Project, Zone 1. 

42. Resolution setting March 18, 2024 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into an 
Agreement for Private Development, and to consider conveyance of city-owned real estate to 
Blackhawk Properties, LLC. 

43. Resolution setting March 18, 2024 as the date of public hearing on the proposed amendments to 
Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the City’s floodplain regulations. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

44. Allow Bills and Claims for March 4, 2024. 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

45. Refer to Committee of the Whole discussion or City Council an ordinance to change the speed limit 
on Center Street between Lone Tree Road and Clair Street to be a continuous 25 mph. 

46. Refer to Committee of the Whole discussion on regular Council Meetings be held on Tuesdays. 

Adjournment 

4



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, FEBRUARY 19, 2024 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR DANIEL LAUDICK PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, 
Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn (via zoom). Absent: None. Mayor Laudick 
led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
54634 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Crisman that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of February 5, 2024 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54635 - The following individuals spoke in support of and requested City Council pass a 

resolution demanding an immediate and permanent ceasefire in Gaza: 
 
  Erica Rissi, Cedar Valley 
  Charlie Grove, Waterloo 
  Xandra, Cedar Falls 
  Jason Droste, Cedar Falls 
  Whitney Rissi, Waterloo 
  Sam, Cedar Falls 
  Nic Tripp, Cedar Falls 
  Bella, Cedar Falls 
  Amelia Gotera, Cedar Falls 
  Archer, Cedar Falls 
  Sonja Bock, Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission Chair 
     
  The following individuals spoke in support of saving The Space: 
  Xandra, Cedar Falls 
  Whitney Rissi, Waterloo 
  Sam, Cedar Falls 
  Amelia Gotera, Cedar Falls 
  Sonja Bock, Cedar Falls  
   
  Bob Manning, Cedar Falls, commented on housing in the College Hill area that is 

in disrepair and provided documents to Councilmembers. Manning also 
commented on potential revisions to the Conflict-of-Interest Form.   

 
  Following comments by Mayor Laudick, Councilmembers Dunn and Schultz, and 

UNI Student Liaison Noah Hackbart, Mayor announced a brief recess from 7:50 
PM to 7:55 PM. 

 
54636 - Director of Finance & Business Operations Rodenbeck announced two parking 

meetings being held at the Public Library on February 26, 2024 at 6 PM and 
February 27, 2024 at 1:30 PM and invited the public to participate in a survey 
regarding the Downtown Parking Feasibility Study. Mayor Laudick commented. 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

 
  Director of Public Works Schrage provided an update on upcoming construction 

on Main Street from 12th Street through 18th Street starting this spring and 
responded to a question by Councilmember Schultz. 

 
54637 - Mayor Laudick announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 

10, 2024, this was the time and place for a public hearing to consider entering 
into an Amended and Restated Agreement for Private Development with CV 
Commercial, L.L.C. It was then moved by Ganfield and seconded by Crisman 
that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54638 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed agreement. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic 
Development Coordinator Graham provided a summary of the proposed 
agreement. Following a question by Councilmember Schultz and response by 
Graham, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of 
business. 

 
54639 - It was moved by Crisman and seconded by Latta that Resolution #23,496, 

approving and authorizing execution of an Amended and Restated Agreement for 
Private Development with CV Commercial, L.L.C, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, 
Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #23,496 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54640 - Mayor Laudick announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 

10, 2024, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the North Cedar Heights 
Area Reconstruction Project Phase 2. It was then moved by Latta and seconded 
by Kruse that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed 
on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54641 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer Wicke provided a 
summary of the proposed project. There being no one else present wishing to 
speak about the proposed project, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and 
passed to the next order of business. 

 
54642 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Hawbaker that Resolution #23,497, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase 2, be 
adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,497 duly passed 
and adopted. 

 
54643 - Mayor announced that this was the time and place for a hearing on the proposed 

condemnation of property located at 109 East 2nd Street. Building Official Castle 
provided an update on the property and gave a brief presentation. Following 
comments and a presentation by Kendalle Alquwaie, Executor of the Estate, and 
Mayor Laudick, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next 
order of business. 

54644- It was moved by Latta and seconded by Schultz that Resolution #23,498, 
declaring the property located at 109 East 2nd Street to be a nuisance due to 
being structurally unsafe, a fire hazard, or otherwise dangerous to human life and 
health, and ordering abatement of said nuisance by removal, repair or demolition 
of said property and requiring the owner of said property to abate said nuisance 
or submit a viable plan by March 18, 2024, be adopted. Following comments and 
questions by Councilmembers Crisman, Schultz, Latta, Kruse, and Hawbaker, 
and responses by Building Official Castle, Director of Community Development 
Sheetz and Mayor Laudick, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, 
Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn.  Nay: None. Motion carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #23,498 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54645 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Latta that Ordinance #3047, imposing 

the one percent local sales and services tax within the City of Cedar Falls and 
allocating the revenue derived therefrom, be passed upon its third and final 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, 
Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance 
#3047 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54646 -    It was moved by Latta and seconded by Schultz that the rules requiring 

Ordinance #3048 be considered at three separate meetings, be suspended. 
Following a comment by Councilmember Latta, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
      It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Schultz that Ordinance #3048, 

amending the Zoning Map located North of Aldrich Elementary School and South 
of West Greenhill Road from R-1, Residential District & MU, Mixed Use 
Residential to RP, Planned Residence District, be passed upon its third & final 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, 
Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3048 duly 
passed and adopted. 

   
54647 - It was moved by Crisman and seconded by Ganfield that Ordinance #3049, 

amending Chapter 17, Parks and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances relative 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

to the Cemetery Section, be passed upon its second consideration. Following 
due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Schultz, 
Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. 

   
54648 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Latta that Ordinance #3050, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicle, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to the speed limit on certain portions of West 27th Street, be passed 
upon its second consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, 
Crisman, Dunn.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. 

 
54649 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Crisman that the following items on 

the Consent Calendar be received, filed, and approved: 
 

Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of February 5, 
2024 relative to the following items: 
a) City Council Training Update. 
b) Hearst Project Update. 

Receive and file the 2023 Annual Reports of the Planning & Zoning Commission, 
Board of Adjustment, Historic Preservation Commission, Group Rental 
Committee/Board of Rental Housing Appeals, Housing Commission and Bicycle 
& Pedestrian Advisory Committee. 

Receive and file the following resignation of members from Boards and 
Commissions:  
a) Gina Weekley, Human Rights Commission. 

Receive and file communications from the Civil Service Commission relative to 
the following certified list: 
a) Waste Water Treatment Plant Operator II. 

Approve the application of Casey's #4279, 1620 W 1st St, for a 
cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit. 

Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Asian Fusion Vietnamese and Thai Cuisine, 5725 University Avenue, Special 
Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) Cottonwood Canyon, 419 Washington Street, Special Class C retail alcohol & 
outdoor service - renewal. 
c) The Wine Shop, 305 Main Street, Special Class C retail alcohol & outdoor 
service - renewal. 
d) Chad's Pizza & Restaurant, 909 West 23rd Street, Class C retail alcohol - 
renewal. 
e) Sakura Japanese Steakhouse & Sushi Bar, 5719 University Avenue, Class C 
retail alcohol - renewal. 
f) Casey's, 1620 West 1st Street, Class E retail alcohol - new. 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

 Motion carried unanimously.  

54650 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Schultz to approve the following 
recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to Boards 
and Commissions: 

    a) Gordon Sorensen, Planning & Zoning Commission, term ending 11/01/2025.  
b) Maureen Henderson, Planning & Zoning Commission, term ending 
11/01/2026. 
c) Brent Johnson, Planning & Zoning Commission, term ending 11/01/2028. 

 
  Following comments by Councilmembers Schultz and Crisman, and Mayor 

Laudick, the motion carried unanimously. 
  

54651 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Latta that the following resolutions be 
introduced and adopted: 

Resolution #23,499, approving and authorizing execution of a Water Service 
Territory Transfer Agreement with Iowa Regional Utilities Association (IRUA) 
relative to water service rights affecting properties along South Union Road. 

Resolution #23,500, approving and authorizing execution of an Addendum of a 
Master Service Agreement with IP Pathways, LLC, relative to providing support 
services. 

Resolution #23,501, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with 
Professional Lawn Care, a/k/a ProLawn, relative to yard maintenance services 
for private properties in violation with City of Cedar Falls Ordinances. 

Resolution #23,502, approving and authorizing expenditure of funds for the 
purchase of a solid waste transfer trailer for the Public Works Department. 

Resolution #23,503, approving and accepting Completion and Final Acceptance 
of Work of Owen Contracting, Inc. for the Lake Street Trail Project. 

Resolution #23,504, receiving and filing, and setting March 4, 2024 as the date of 
public hearing on, the proposed plans, specification, form of contract & estimate 
of cost for the 2024 Street Restoration Project. 

Resolution #23,505, setting April 1, 2024 as the date of the public hearing on the 
proposed property tax rate and creating a proposed property tax rate for the City 
of Cedar Falls FY2025 Budget. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #23,499 through #23,505 
duly passed and adopted. 

54652 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #23,506, 
designating July 5 and July 6, 2024 (9 a.m.-10 p.m.) as additional days of use for 
consumer fireworks within the City limits, be adopted.  Following comments by 

9

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

Mayor Laudick and Director of Public Safety Berte, questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Ganfield, Latta, Schultz, Dunn, Hawbaker, Kruse, and Crisman, 
and responses by Berte and Police Chief Howard, the Mayor put the question on 
the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn. Nay: Schultz. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,506 duly passed and adopted. 
 

54653 -  It was moved by Crisman and seconded by Schultz that the bills and claims of 
February 19, 2024 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, 
Crisman, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

        
54654 -   It was moved by Crisman and seconded by Latta to adjourn to Executive Session 

to discuss Information contained in records in the custody of a governmental 
body that are confidential records pursuant to Iowa Code Section 22.7(50); and 
to discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the 
purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could 
be reasonably expected to increase the price the governmental body would have 
to pay for that property or reduce the price the governmental body would receive 
for that property. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted.  Aye: Schultz, Latta, Kruse, Hawbaker, Ganfield, Crisman, Dunn.  Nay: 
None.  Motion carried. 

 
     The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 8:55 P.M. 
 
     Mayor Laudick reconvened the Council meeting at 9:43 P.M.   
   
54655 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Hawbaker that the meeting be 

adjourned at 9:44 P.M. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
                                                           __________________________________ 
                                                           Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

10

Item 1.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Principal Engineer, PE, PhD 
 
 DATE: February 23, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: 2024 Street Restoration Project 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3337 
  Public Hearing 
 
This project involves the restoration of portions of six (6) city streets totaling 1.54 miles. 
Work will include 11,345 sy of pavement removal by milling, 5322 tons of asphalt 
placement, 7,038 lf of pavement saw cutting, replacement of pedestrian ramps, 
modifications to existing storm sewer intakes, manhole adjustments, and pavement 
striping. 
 

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $1,563,165.25. The project 
will be funded by Local Option Sales Tax, Street Construction Fund, and General 
Obligation Bond.  
 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2024 Street 
Restoration Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

11

Item 1.



ITEM # ITEM CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY TOTAL COST

1 2010-108-D-3 OFF-SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. 35.00$         62 2,170.00$       

2 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY, WASTE C.Y. 20.00$         75 1,500.00$       

3 2121.03.B GRANULAR SHOULDER, TYPE A (HMA MILLINGS) TONS 25.00$         147 3,675.00$       

4 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, TYPE B TOP EACH 3,000.00$    1 3,000.00$       

5 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, TYPE C TOP EACH 3,000.00$    1 3,000.00$       

6 6010-108-F-0 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT, MAJOR (MR. MANHOLE) EACH 5,000.00$    2 10,000.00$     

7 6010-108-H-0 REMOVAL OF STORM MANHOLES AND INTAKES EACH 750.00$       2 1,500.00$       

8 7010-108-E-0 CURB, PCC 7 IN., 2.0 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 100.00$       178 17,800.00$     
9 7020-108-A-0 HMA, (ST), SURF., 1/2", PG58-28S TONS 160.00$       2661 425,760.00$   

10 7020-108-A-0 HMA, (ST), BASE., 3/4", PG58-28S TONS 160.00$       2661 425,760.00$   

11 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. 30.00$         65 1,950.00$       

12 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 4 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 100.00$       37 3,700.00$       

13 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 100.00$       28 2,800.00$       

14 7030-108-G-0 DETECTABLE WARNINGS S.F. 70.00$         48 3,360.00$       

15 7040-108-G-0 MILLING S.Y. 42.00$         11345 476,490.00$   

16 7040-108-I-0 CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL L.F. 30.00$         178 5,340.00$       

17 8020-108-B-0 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SOLVENT/WATERBORNE STA. 90.00$         44 3,996.00$       

18 8020-108-G-0 PAINTED SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS EACH 80.00$         2 160.00$          

19 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 30,000.00$  1 30,000.00$     

20 9010-108-B-0 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.F. 1.25$           3281 4,101.25$       

21 9040-108-A-2 STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP), MANAGEMENT L.S. 5,000.00$    1 5,000.00$       

22 9040-108-D-1A WATTLES, 9IN. STRAW L.F. 3.00$           20 60.00$            

23 9040-108-D-2A WATTLES, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL L.F. 1.00$           20 20.00$            

24 9040-108-T-1 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, INSTALLATION EACH 150.00$       1 150.00$          

25 9040-108-T-2 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, MAINTENANCE EACH 50.00$         1 50.00$            

26 11020-108-A-0 MOBILIZATION L.S. 70,000.00$  1 70,000.00$     

27 11050-108-A-0 CONCRETE WASHOUT L.S. 2,000.00$    1 2,000.00$       

28 11050-108-A-0 SAW AND SEAL JOINTS L.F. 8.50$           7038 59,823.00$     

$1,563,165.25TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

2024 STREET RESTORATION PROJECT
CITY PROJECT NO. RC - 000 - 3337

FINAL ESTIMATE OF COSTS & QUANTITIES

12

Item 1.



13

Item 2.



14

Item 2.



15

Item 2.



16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



18

Item 2.



19

Item 2.



20

Item 2.



21

Item 2.



22

Item 2.



23

Item 2.



24

Item 2.



25

Item 2.



26

Item 2.



27

Item 2.



28

Item 2.



29

Item 2.



30

Item 2.



31

Item 2.



32

Item 2.



33

Item 2.



34

Item 2.



35

Item 2.



36

Item 2.



37

Item 2.



38

Item 2.



 
 

 
  

 

ORDINANCE NO. 3049 

        AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A REVISED CEMETERY SECTION OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES BY REPEALING DIVISION 3, CEMETERY SECTION, OF ARTICLE II, ARBORIST 

AND CEMETERY SECTIONS, OF CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND RECREATION, OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A 

NEW DIVISION 3, CEMETERY SECTION, CONSISTING OF SECTIONS 17-75 THROUGH 17-98, 

INCLUSIVE. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

        Division 3, Cemetery Section, of Article II, Arborist and Cemetery Sections, of Chapter 17, Parks and 

Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its 

entirety and a new Division 3, Cemetery Section, consisting of Sections 17-75 through 17-98 is 

enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

DIVISION 3. CEMETERY SECTION 

Sec. 17-75. Cemetery supervisor appointment; supervision. 

The cemetery section of the department of public works, operations and maintenance division, shall be 
under the control of the cemetery supervisor, who shall be appointed by the director of public works upon 
recommendation of the operations and maintenance division manager and be directly responsible to, and subject 
to the direction of, the operations and maintenance division manager.  

(Code 2017, § 20-106; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2942, § 2, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 17-76. Duties of cemetery supervisor. 

The supervisor of cemeteries shall:  

(1)     Develop and update regulations consistent with this division concerning all municipal cemeteries 
located in the city.  Such regulations are subject to approval by the council and shall be made available 
to the public. 

(2) See that the cemetery ordinances and regulations are enforced.  

(3) Perform such other duties as are required by ordinances and regulations and as the council and 
operations and maintenance division manager may direct.  

(4) Do all proper acts necessary to maintain the cemetery grounds in a neat, clean and attractive condition 
at all times.  

(Code 2017, § 20-107; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2941, § 5, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 17-77. Authority of cemetery supervisor to control location of markers and monuments. 

The supervisor of cemeteries shall control and direct the location of all markers, columbarium and 
monuments within municipal cemeteries located in the city.  

(Code 2017, § 20-108; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014) 

39

Item 2.



 

 

Sec. 17-78. Cemeteries renamed. 

The cemetery formerly known as Old Cemetery is hereby named Greenwood Cemetery and the cemetery 
formerly known as Twelfth Street Cemetery is hereby named Fairview Cemetery.  

(Code 2017, § 20-109; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-79. Applicability of cemetery ordinances and regulations. 

The provisions of this division and the amendments thereto and all other ordinances and regulations of the 
city relating to Greenwood Cemetery shall, except as otherwise provided, apply to any and all other cemeteries 
which are owned, operated or controlled by the city.  

(Code 2017, § 20-110; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-80. Disposition of monies received by cemetery supervisor. 

All monies received by the cemetery supervisor under the ordinances and regulations of this division shall be 
paid over to the city clerk within 30 days after the receipt thereof. The clerk shall then deposit such monies with 
the treasurer.  

(Code 2017, § 20-111; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-81. Burial in cemetery required. 

The remains of all persons, when such remains are buried in the city, except those that are cremated, shall 
be buried in either Greenwood Cemetery, Hillside Cemetery, Fairview Cemetery or other cemeteries established 
by the city.  

(Code 2017, § 20-112; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-82. Hours of cemeteries. 

The cemeteries subject to this division shall be open to the public each day from sunrise to sunset, and no 
person shall enter such cemeteries at any other time without the consent of the cemetery supervisor or public 
safety services department.  

(Code 2017, § 20-113; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-83. Operation of perpetual care cemeteries. 

(a) Trusteeship. Pursuant to Iowa Code § 523I.502, the city hereby states its willingness and intention to act as 
the trustee for the perpetual maintenance of interment spaces in Greenwood Cemetery, Hillside Cemetery, 
Fairview Cemetery, and any other cemeteries hereafter established by the city.  

(b) Establishment of trust fund. A perpetual trust is hereby established for Greenwood Cemetery, Hillside 
Cemetery and Fairview Cemetery in accordance with the Iowa Cemetery Act. A restricted fund is created, to 
be known and designated as the "perpetual care cemetery fund," which shall be funded by the deposit of an 
amount equal to or greater than 20 percent of the gross selling price, or $50.00, whichever is more, for each 
sale of interment space within each cemetery. The fund shall be administered in accordance with the 
purposes and provisions of the Iowa Cemetery Act (Iowa Code ch. 523I). The perpetual care cemetery fund 
shall be maintained separate from all operating funds of the city and the principal of the fund shall not be 

40

Item 2.



 

 

reduced voluntarily except as specifically permitted by the Iowa Cemetery Act and applicable administrative 
regulations.  

(c) Sale of interment rights. The sale or transfer by the city of interment rights for lots and cremains niches in 
each cemetery subject to the provisions of this division shall be sold at such price as the council may, from 
time to time, provide by resolution, subject, however, to the provisions of subsection (b) of this section, and 
shall be evidenced by a certificate of interment rights and agreement evidencing the conveyance of exclusive 
rights of interment upon payment in full of the purchase price. The agreement for interment rights shall 
disclose all information required by the Iowa Cemetery Act, including the amount or percentage of money to 
be placed in the perpetual care cemetery fund, and the balance thereof to be placed in the city's general 
fund.  

(d) Perpetual care registry. The city shall maintain a registry of individuals who have purchased interment rights 
in the cemetery subject to the care fund requirements of the Iowa Cemetery Act, including the amounts 
deposited in the perpetual care cemetery fund of the city.  

(Code 2017, § 20-114; Ord. No. 2876, § 1, 8-15-2016) 

Sec. 17-84. Interment Rights. 

(a)      Interment.  A person acquires interment rights upon city approval of an interment agreement, payment of 
the required fee, and issuance of a certificate of interment rights.  Such person shall be considered owner of 
an interment space with rights to be interred in or to direct interment in the interment space, subject to the 
ordinances and cemetery regulations of the city.  Only those persons whose names appear in the cemetery 
records of the city shall be recognized as owner. 

(b)     No subdivision.  Interment spaces shall not be subdivided except by consent of the cemetery supervisor.   

(c)     Taxes, assessments.  Interment spaces are exempt from taxation and may not be pledged or otherwise 
encumbered by the owner. 

(d)     Surviving spouse; heirs.  Rights of interment are presumed to include the surviving spouse of the owner, 
which rights may not be divested without the written consent of said surviving spouse.  For purposes of this 
subsection a surviving spouse does not include a person divorced from the owner or whose marriage has 
been annulled as of the date of death of the owner.  If there is no surviving spouse at the time of the owner’s 
death, or upon the death of the surviving spouse, indivisible rights of interment shall then pass to heirs at law 
of the deceased owner in the order of their need, subject to the vested right of interment in the interment 
space of the deceased owner and surviving spouse.  Any heir may waive rights to interment in favor of 
another heir or heirs by filing a written instrument to that effect with the city clerk.   

(e)     Joint interment rights.  Where a right of interment is conveyed to two or more persons who are not married, 
such owners shall be considered as joint tenants with each joint tenant having a vested right of interment. 
Upon the death of a joint tenant the right of interment vests in all surviving joint tenants, subject to the 
vested right of interment in the interment space of the deceased joint tenant.    

(f)      Transfer of rights of interment.  Transfer of rights of interment may be made by written instrument filed with 
the city clerk, and surrender of the owner’s certificate of interment rights, subject to approval of the 
cemetery supervisor.  No transfer shall be allowed if there is indebtedness owed to the city from the owner 
of record of the interment space.  An additional interment fee as provided in section 17-83 shall be paid with 
any transfer, and upon payment of the requisite fee a new certificate of interment rights shall be issued to 
the new owner.  Such transfer of interment rights shall be noted in the perpetual care registry. 

(g)     Termination of interment rights.  

          (1)     Interment rights may be surrendered by the owner upon written instrument filed with the city clerk.  A 
refund of the purchase price, without interest, shall be paid to the surrendering owner. 

          (2)     Interment rights of an owner shall be deemed terminated upon transfer of such interment rights. 

41

Item 2.



 

 

          (3)     Interment rights shall be terminated and shall automatically revert to and vest with the city if an 
interment space is unoccupied and has not been occupied in the preceding 75 years.  Notice of 
termination shall be provided to the owner of record or the owner’s heirs as provided by law. 

          (4)     Interment rights to an interment space may be terminated and revert to and vest with the city upon 
disinterment, unless contrary written notice is provided to the city clerk by an owner, surviving spouse, 
or heirs within 90 days of such disinterment.               

Sec. 17-85. Interments. 

(a) Application. 

          (1) An application for interment must be made to the cemetery supervisor in the form specified in the 
cemetery regulations. 

          (2) An application for interment shall in all cases be accompanied by the fee, to be fixed as provided in 
section 17-83.  

          (3)     No interment shall be allowed without an approved application and payment of the requisite fee.  

          (4)     Interment is allowed only in designated interment spaces within municipal cemeteries. 

(b) Prerequisites to issuance of permit. The city clerk shall not issue a permit for interment unless sufficient 
information has been provided to the cemetery supervisor to ensure correct location of interment as well as 
the method of interment and also to ensure that city standards are met with respect to the burial receptacle 
or urn. 

(c) Unauthorized interment prohibited. The owner of an interment space shall not permit interments to be made 
therein for remuneration and shall not permit interments to be made except as provided in this division.  

(d) Interment in interment space of another. The cemetery supervisor is strictly forbidden to permit the 
interment of any person in the interment space of someone other than the owner or surviving spouse 
without the express written permission of the owner or the owner’s surviving spouse, or their heirs.  

(e) Incorrect information.  The city shall not be responsible for any error occurring from the lack of precise and 
correct instructions on an interment permit application and shall not be responsible for the identity of any 
deceased person sought to be interred.   

(Code 2017, § 20-116; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2876, § 2, 8-15-2016) 

Sec. 17-86. Care of cemetery lots. 

No person, other than the owner or the owner’s spouse, heirs, or a near relative or intimate friend, working 
without compensation, shall be permitted to care for any cemetery lot or niche, and such care shall be subject to 
cemetery regulations.   

(Code 2017, § 20-117; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2942, § 2, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 17-87. Removal of remains from cemeteries. 

A notice of disinterment shall be filed with the cemetery supervisor prior to disinterment and is subject to 
the same fees as for interment, except to correct an error by the city.  Such notice shall contain information as 
required by the cemetery supervisor.  Disinterment is otherwise subject to state law.  The clerk shall maintain a 
permanent record of disinterments. 

(Code 2017, § 20-118; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014)

42

Item 2.



 

 

Sec. 17-88.  Cemetery work; license required. 

(a)    Cemetery work defined.  For purposes of this division, cemetery work means construction, placement, 

maintenance or repair of a foundation, monument, marker or other structure, or performing engraving, or 

adding adornments, in a cemetery subject to this division.   

(b)     No cemetery work without a license.  No person shall perform cemetery work without first obtaining a license 

from the cemetery supervisor and paying the required fee as established by the city council from time to 

time. 

(c)     Cemetery license application.  The application for a cemetery license shall be in a form prescribed by the 
cemetery supervisor and shall include information reasonably calculated to determine the appropriateness of 
granting a license, including but not limited to satisfactory evidence of ability to properly perform cemetery 
work.  The cemetery supervisor shall determine whether a cemetery license shall be issued. 

 

Sec. 17-89.  Cemetery work bond; insurance. 

(a)      Bond.  Each applicant for a cemetery license shall file with the city clerk a bond with a surety approved by 
the cemetery supervisor in the penal sum of $10,000.00, conditioned that applicant will comply with and 
observe the terms and conditions of all cemetery ordinances and regulations, and will pay all costs, fines and 
penalties incurred on account of failure to observe such ordinances and regulations.  Further, such bond shall 
be conditioned on the performance of cemetery work in a good and workmanlike manner. 

(b)    Insurance.  All cemetery licensees shall provide proof of and maintain commercial general liability insurance 
having a minimum combined single limit of $1,000,000.00.   

 

Sec. 17-90.  Revocation of cemetery license. 

(a)     A cemetery license granted under this division shall be revoked if the cemetery licensee does or allows to be 
done any of the following: 

          (1)     Fails to comply with all cemetery ordinances and regulations. 

          (2)     Fails to furnish proof of or maintain the bond or insurance required by this division. 

          (3)     Fails to provide timely advance notice to the cemetery supervisor or designee of cemetery work as 
required by this division.  

          (4)     Refuses to allow or resists an inspection of cemetery work by any authorized agent of the city. 

          (5)     Furnishes false information on the license application or other documents required under this division. 

          (6)     Fails to correct defective work or materials after notice by the cemetery supervisor. 

          (7)     Fails to pay fees or costs of repair or removal of a defective foundation, monument or marker installed 
or repaired by the licensee and corrected by the city. 

          (8)     Fails to pay for damage done to interment spaces, plots, walks, drives, grounds, trees, shrubs or other 
cemetery property by a licensee or agent after notice and demand therefore.       

(b)     Upon the occurrence of any of the events described in subsection (a) of this section, the city cler k 
shall provide to the cemetery licensee written notice of revocation of the cemetery license, and the 
cemetery licensee shall thereupon immediately cease to perform cemetery work. 

43

Item 2.



 

 

(c)     The cemetery licensee may appeal revocation of the cemetery license by written notice of appeal 
mailed or delivered to the city clerk within ten days of the date of notice of revocation. During the 
pendency of the appeal, the cemetery licensee shall not be allowed to perform cemetery work. 

(d)     Upon receipt of the appeal, the city clerk shall notify the chair of the administration committee of the 
city council of the appeal, and a hearing before the administration committee shall be scheduled 
within 20 days of the date of the notice of appeal. The cemetery licensee shall be notified in writing of 
the time and place of hearing on the appeal and shall be afforded an opportunity to present 
information to the administration committee in support of the appeal. The administration committee 
shall also consider any information provided by the cemetery supervisor.  The administration 
committee shall issue a written decision within ten days of the date of the hearing, either affirming or 
reversing the revocation of the cemetery license with or without condition. The decision of the 
administration committee shall be final. 

Sec. 17-91.  Notice of cemetery work; inspection; defective work. 

(a)     Notice of cemetery work.  Before any cemetery work is commenced, a cemetery licensee shall 
provide the cemetery supervisor at least ten days advance notice. 

(b)     Plans and specifications.  The cemetery supervisor may require written plans and specifications of 
such cemetery work prior to commencement. 

(c)      Inspection; correcting defective work.  The cemetery supervisor has the right to inspect cemetery work and if 
the determination is made that cemetery ordinances or regulations are or were not being followed or if the 
workmanship results in instability or other defect, or if approved plans and specifications were not followed, 
the cemetery supervisor may order the work to stop until the defect is corrected, which may include removal 
and reinstallation by the licensee.  The actual monument, marker or other adornment intended for 
installation is also subject to inspection and approval prior to installation.   

(d)     Defect found within one year.  If a marker or monument sinks, tilts or becomes misaligned, or if cemetery 
work or material is otherwise found to be defective within one year from completion of cemetery work, such 
defective work or material shall be corrected by the licensee at licensee’s cost upon written notice by the 
cemetery supervisor.  Such notice shall specify the nature of the defective work or material.   

Sec. 17-92. Cemetery markers and monuments—Repair or removal of unsightly markers and 

monuments. 

(a) Notice to owner. Following one year after installation, should any monument, marker or other adornment in 
a cemetery begin leaning, become dilapidated, unsightly or objectionable to the cemetery supervisor, the 
city clerk shall notify the owner by mail, if the owner’s address is known, to make such repairs as may be 
necessary, or to replace the monument, marker or other adornment, within 30 days from the date of mailing 
of such notice. At the expiration of such time, if the notice has not been complied with, or if the owner is not 
known or cannot reasonably be located or ascertained, it shall be the duty of the cemetery supervisor to 
enter upon and cause such repairs to be made, or such objectionable thing to be removed. The supervisor 
shall report the cost to the clerk, and the cost of such repair or removal shall be assessed against such owner, 
if known, or surviving spouse or heirs. 

(b) Repair by city at owner's request. At the request of an owner of an interment space, the cemetery supervisor 
may make needed repairs to any marker or monument and render a bill to the owner for the cost of the 
repairs. If such bill is not paid within a reasonable time after billing, the city may pursue collection by any 
lawful means.  

44

Item 2.



 

 

(c)      Vandalism.  The City is not responsible for damage to or defacement of markers, monuments or other 
adornments, or interment spaces, caused by acts of vandalism.  In such case the cemetery supervisor shall 
notify the owner as provided in this section within sixty days of discovery of such vandalism, and the owner 
shall be responsible for repair or replacement as also provided in this section. 

(Code 2017, § 20-124; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-93.  Columbarium. 

(a)     Definitions.  The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning.   

          (1)     Columbarium.  An aboveground structure owned by the city and located in city cemeteries that contains 
cremains niches. 

          (2)     Niche or cremains niche.  A compartment within a columbarium for the storage of funerary urns that 
are available to the public for interment as provided in this division.  

          (3)     Funerary Urn.  A container holding the cremated remains of a deceased person. 

(b)     Funerary urn or urn.  A funerary urn shall be of a material and of a size suitable for placement in a niche 
within a columbarium.  Unsuitable funerary urns may be rejected by the cemetery supervisor at the cemetery 
supervisor’s discretion. 

(c)     Niche plate.  Cremains niches shall be enclosed with a niche plate provided by the City and shall be sealed in a 
manner directed by the cemetery supervisor.  No attachments to a niche plate shall be allowed other than 
standard identifying bronze plaques provided and affixed by the City.  However, military medallions may be 
attached to a niche plate as approved by the cemetery supervisor and affixed by the city. 

(d)     Disinurnment.  Removal of cremains from a niche shall be allowed only as provided in section 17-87. 

(e)     Fees.  The fees for interment in a columbarium shall be as provided for in section 17-83.  The fees for City-
provided niche plates and plaques shall be established by council by resolution from time to time.  

(f)     Inurnment outside a columbarium.  Nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent the burial of a 
funerary urn in a gravesite or placement of an urn in a monument niche as approved by the cemetery 
supervisor.         

Sec. 17-94.  Improvements to cemetery lots. 

No improvements to municipal cemetery lots or grounds shall be made except under the direction of the 
supervisor of cemeteries.  

(Code 2017, § 20-126; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014)

Sec. 17-95. Destruction of cemetery property. 

No person shall willfully and without authority destroy, mutilate, deface, injure or remove any of the 
gravestones or other structures in a cemetery within the limits of the city, or injure or destroy any fence, railing, 
tree, shrubbery, flower or lawn in such cemetery, or anything belonging to the city, or use such cemetery for any 
disrespectful or improper purpose whatever.  Violation of this section shall be a municipal infraction punishable as 
provided in section 1-9.  

(Code 2017, § 20-129; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014) 

45

Item 2.



 

 

 

Sec. 17-96. Traffic regulations. 

No person in a cemetery shall:  

(1) Operate a vehicle at a rate of speed exceeding ten miles per hour.  

(2) Operate any vehicle on any area except the established cemetery roads or parking areas or such 
other areas as may be specifically designated by the director of public works or designee.  

(3) Operate a snowmobile, all-terrain vehicle or similar equipment, unless operated by an employee or 
agent of a public or private agency for the purposes of providing emergency services, rescue or 
maintenance, and as may be specifically designated by the director of public works or designee.  

(4) Operate a vehicle at night without headlights or other similar lighting equipment.  

(5) Operate any vehicle in disregard of any traffic sign indicating direction, caution or stopping, or any 
other sign posted for proper control and to safeguard life and property.  

(6) Park a vehicle in other than established designated parking areas, or as directed by the cemetery 
supervisor or his designee.  

(7) Leave a vehicle standing or parked during the hours when the cemetery is closed.  

(8) Park a vehicle, or use a cemetery, for the purpose of repair or washing or maintenance of a vehicle.  

(Code 2017, § 20-129A; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014; Ord. No. 2941, § 5, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 17-97. Removal of refuse and litter from cemetery lots. 

No refuse or litter shall be left on any cemetery lot subject to the provisions of this division, or placed on the 
lot of another, or in the streets, nor shall any decayed flowers, shells, or any other unsightly thing be left on any lot 
for a period longer than three days; otherwise it shall be the duty of the cemetery supervisor to remove such 
unsightly thing without notice.  

(Code 2017, § 20-130; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014) 

Sec. 17-98.  Private mausoleums and crypts. 

Private mausoleums and crypts are hereby prohibited in the city.  

(Code 2017, § 20-132; Ord. No. 2823, § 1, 6-23-2014) 

Secs. 17-99—17-132. Reserved. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

46

Item 2.



 

 

INTRODUCED:     February 5, 2024    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   February 5, 2024    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   February 19, 2024    

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:         

ADOPTED:            

 

       _____________________________ 

       Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 
 

47

Item 2.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council  
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: February 5, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: Updates to City Code Section 23-300  
  Lawful Speed Limits Established 
  W 27th Street 
 
The newly designed and constructed portion of W 27th Street between Hudson and 
Union Road near the new high school has been completed. The intended speed limit 
through the updated corridor has been adjusted with the new roundabouts. The 
adjustments will shift to a 25mph zone from Hudson Road to Greenhill road, a 35mph 
zone from Greenhill road to the westerly high school roundabout, and the existing 
corridor West of the high school will remain as currently posted at 45 mph.   
 
The Engineering Division is proposing changes to City Code Section 23-300, Lawful 
Speed Limits Established, to match what has been designed and constructed. Please 
see the attached redline changes for City Code Section 23-300, Lawful Speed Limits 
Established.  
 
The Engineering Division recommends approval of setting the speed limits in the 
corridor on the attached redline through the corridor from Hudson Road to the west City 
limits.  
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to ask. 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer  
 

48

Item 3.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: Matthew Tolan, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 268-5161 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3050 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE ENUMERATED SPEED LIMIT ON 27TH 
STREET AS 25 MILES PER HOUR FROM HUDSON ROAD WEST 2,700 FEET 
AND AS 35 MILES PER HOUR FROM 2,700 FEET WEST OF HUDSON ROAD 
TO 4,700 FEET WEST OF HUDSON ROAD AND AS 45 MILES PER HOUR 
FROM 4,700 FEET WEST OF HUDSON ROAD TO THE WEST CITY LIMITS, IN 
SECTION 23-300, LAWFUL SPEED LIMITS ESTABLISHED, OF DIVISION 5, 
SPEED, OF ARTICLE III, OPERATION, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND 
MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY REPEALING SUBSECTION 8(A), AND ENACTING A 
NEW SUBSECTION 8(A) IN LIEU THEREOF; AND REPEALING SUBSECTION 
10(C) AND ENACTING A NEW SUBSECTION 10(C) IN LIEU THEREOF; AND 
REPEALING SUBSECTION 12(E) AND ENACTING A NEW SUBSECTION 
12(E) IN LIEU THEREOF. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 1. Subsection 8(a) and Subsection 10(c) and Subsection 12(e) of Section 23-

300, Lawful Speed Limits Established, of Division 5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 
23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are 
hereby amended by repealing said Subsections in their entirety and enacting in lieu thereof new 
Subsections 8(a) and 10(c) and 12(e), as follows: 

 
Sec. 23-300. - Lawful speed limits established. 

Unless otherwise provided by this chapter or other city ordinances and appropriately 
posted, the speed limits established in this section shall be the lawful speed, and any speed in 
excess thereof shall be unlawful. 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 

   (8) Twenty-five miles per hour. 25 miles per hour on any of the following streets as 
indicated: 
 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 

49

Item 3.



2 

 

 

 a. 27th Street (west), from its intersection with Hudson Road west a distance of 
2,700 feet. 

 
[unchanged provisions omitted] 

 
(10) 35 miles per hour.  35 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated: 
 
                                   [unchanged provisions omitted] 
 
      c. 27th Street (West), from a point 2,700 feet west of Hudson Road west to a 

point 4,700 feet west of Hudson Road.  
 
                                  [unchanged provisions omitted] 

 
(12) 45 miles per hour.  45 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated: 
 
                                   [unchanged provisions omitted] 
 
      e. 27th Street (West), from a point 4,700 feet west of Hudson Road west to the 

west City limits. 
 
                                  [unchanged provisions omitted] 
 
 
 

 
INTRODUCED:     February 5, 2024    
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   February 5, 2024    
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:   February 19, 2024    
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:         
 
ADOPTED:            
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                           Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

50

Item 3.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-11-14 11:03:41 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 17) 

 
Page 1 of 4 

Sec. 23-300. Lawful speed limits established. 

Unless otherwise provided by this division or other city ordinances and appropriately posted, the speed 
limits established in this section shall be the lawful speed, and any speed in excess thereof shall be unlawful.  

(1) Parks, cemeteries and alleys. 15 miles per hour in any park, cemetery or public alley.  

(2) Business districts. 20 miles per hour in any business district.  

(3) Industrial districts. 25 miles per hour in any industrial district.  

(4) Residence districts; school districts. 25 miles per hour in any residence or school district.  

(5) Suburban districts. 45 miles per hour in any suburban district.  

(6) Fifteen miles per hour. 15 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

a. Clay Street, from West Third Street north to West Second Street.  

b. Pheasant Drive, for a distance of 210 feet east of the centerline of the jog in Pheasant Drive and 
for a distance of 200 feet west of the centerline of the jog in Pheasant Drive.  

(7) Twenty miles per hour. 20 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

Waterloo Road, from its intersection with 14th Street northwesterly to the intersection of Bluff Street 
and East 13th Street.  

(8) Twenty-five miles per hour. 25 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

a. 27th Street (West), from its intersection with Hudson Road west a distance of 1,8002,700 feet.  

b. Brandilynn Boulevard, from 400 feet east of Wal-Mart Drive west to the west end of the street.  

c. Center Street, from its intersection with First Street to a point 300 feet north of First Street.  

d. Center Street, from a point 200 feet south of its intersection with Green Avenue north to a point 
200 feet north of its intersection with Lantz Avenue.  

e. Chancellor Drive, from Viking Road south to Ridgeway Avenue.  

f. Cottage Row Road, from Center Street south to a point 800 feet west of the south end of the 
Snag Creek Bridge.  

g. Technology Parkway, from Hudson Road east to Chancellor Drive.  

h. Wal-Mart Drive, from Brandilynn Boulevard south to Viking Road.  

i. Westminster Drive, from Viking Road north and east to Nordic Drive.  

(9) 30 miles per hour. 30 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

a. First Street (East) eastbound, from Main Street east to a point 850 feet east of Main Street.  

b. First Street (East) westbound, from a point 520 feet east of Main Street west to Main Street.  

c. First Street (West), from Main Street west to Highland Drive.  

d. Brandilynn Boulevard, from 400 feet east of Wal-Mart Drive east to the east end of the street.  

e. Main Street (South), from University Avenue south to Orchard Drive.  

f. Prairie Parkway, from Brandilynn Boulevard south to Viking Road.  

g. Winterberry Drive, from Brandilynn Boulevard south to Viking Road.  

51

Item 3.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-11-14 11:03:41 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 17) 

 
Page 2 of 4 

(10) 35 miles per hour. 35 miles per hour on any of the following streets as indicated:  

a. 12th Street (West), from a point 425 feet west of the Carriage Lane intersection with West 12th 
Street to a point 125 feet west of the intersection of Barnett Drive with West 12th Street.  

b. 18th Street (East), from Main Street to Waterloo Road.  

c. 27th Street (West), from a point 1,8002,700 feet west of Hudson Road west to a point 4,0004,700 
feet west of Hudson Road.  

d. Big Woods Road, from Lake Street north to the north city limits.  

e. Cedar Heights Drive, from its intersection with University Avenue to a point 1,200 feet south of 
University Avenue.  

f. Center Street, from a point 300 feet north of First Street north to a point 200 feet south of its 
intersection with Green Avenue, and from a point 200 feet north of its intersection with Lantz 
Avenue north to the north city limits.  

g. Cottage Row Road, from 800 feet west of the south end of the Snag Creek Bridge west to the end 
of said road.  

h. Dunkerton Road, from its intersection with Center Street east to its intersection with U. S. 
Highway 218.  

i. Greenhill Road, from Hudson Road west and north to West 27th Street.  

j. Hudson Road, from its intersection with the south line of University Avenue north to its 
intersection with First Street.  

k. Independence Avenue, from Lincoln Street north to Big Woods Road.  

l. Lake Street, from a point 600 feet east of Central Avenue east to U.S. Highway 218.  

m. Lincoln Street, from its intersection with Jefferson Street east to its intersection with Vermont 
Street.  

n. Lone Tree Road, from its intersection with Ford Road to Center Street.  

o. Main Street, from 13th Street to University Avenue, inclusive.  

p. Main Street (South), from Orchard Drive south to the end of the street.  

q. Production Drive, from Viking Road west and south to Technology Parkway.  

r. Rainbow Drive, from its intersection with Waterloo Road east to the city limits.  

s. Technology Parkway, from Hudson Road west to the west end of the street.  

t. University Avenue, from Hudson Road east to the east city limits.  

u. Viking Road, from its intersection with the west line of Prairie Parkway west to the west city 
limits.  

v. Waterloo Road, from its intersection with East 14th Street southeasterly to its intersection of 
University Avenue.  

w. Ridgeway Avenue, from Hudson Road east to Iowa Highway 58.  

(11) 40 miles per hour. 40 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

Reserved.  

(12) 45 miles per hour. 45 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

52

Item 3.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-11-14 11:03:41 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 17) 

 
Page 3 of 4 

a. First Street (East) eastbound, from a point 850 feet east of Main Street to a point 1,520 feet east 
of Main Street.  

b. First Street (East) westbound, from a point 1,200 feet east of Main Street west to a point 520 feet 
east of Main Street.  

c. First Street (West), from Highland Drive west to a point 340 feet west of Lake Ridge Drive.  

d. 12th Street (West), from a point 125 feet west of the intersection of Barnett Drive with West 
12th Street to the west city limits.  

e. 27th Street (West), from a point 4,0004,700 feet west of Hudson Road west to the west city 
limits.  

f. Cedar Heights Drive, from a point 1,200 feet south of University Avenue south to the city limits.  

g. Center Street, from a point 300 feet north of First Street to Cottage Row Road.  

h. Dunkerton Road, from its intersection with U. S. Highway 218 east to the east city limits.  

i. Fitkin Road, from its intersection with Ford Road to Center Street.  

j. Ford Road, from its intersection with Fitkin Road south to Lone Tree Road.  

k. Greenhill Road, from its intersection with Hudson Road to the east city limits.  

l. Hudson Road, from its intersection with the south line of University Avenue south to the south 
city limits.  

m. Iowa Highway 58, from its intersection with Ridgeway Avenue south to the south city limits.  

n. Lake Street, from U.S. Highway 218 east to the east city limits.  

o. Leversee Road (West half), from a point one-quarter mile north of Lincoln Street to the north city 
limits.  

p. Lincoln Street, from its intersection with Vermont Street easterly to the city limits.  

q. Lone Tree Road, from its intersection with Center Street to Leversee Road.  

r. Main Street (South), from Viking Road south to the city limits.  

s. Ridgeway Avenue, from Hudson Road west to the western city limits.  

t. Union Road, from the south city limits to West 1st Street.  

u. Viking Road, from the east line of Prairie Parkway east to its intersection with Cedar Heights 
Drive.  

v. Ridgeway Avenue, from Iowa Highway 58 east to the eastern city limits.  

(13) 50 miles per hour. 50 miles per hour on the following streets and/or highways as indicated:  

a. First Street (West), from a point 340 feet west of Lake Ridge Drive west to Union Road.  

b. Union Road, from West First Street north to the north city limits.  

(14) 55 miles per hour. 55 miles per hour on the following streets and/or highways as indicated:  

a. First Street (East) eastbound, from a point 1,520 feet east of Main Street east to a point 700 feet 
east of the midpoint between the Iowa Highway 58 northbound overpass and the Iowa Highway 
58 southbound overpass.  

53

Item 3.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-11-14 11:03:41 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 17) 

 
Page 4 of 4 

b. First Street (East) westbound, from a point 600 feet west of the midpoint between the Iowa 
Highway 58 northbound overpass and the Iowa Highway 58 southbound overpass west to a point 
1,200 feet east of Main Street.  

c. First Street (West), from Union Road west to the west city limits.  

d. Iowa Highway 58, from a point 1,300 feet north of its intersection with Greenhill Road south to 
its intersection with Ridgeway Avenue.  

e. University Avenue, from a point 3,100 feet west of its intersection with Hudson Road to the west 
city limits.  

(15) 60 miles per hour. 60 miles per hour on the following streets and/or highways as indicated:  

a. First Street (East), from its intersection with the midpoint between the Iowa Highway 58 
northbound overpass and the Iowa Highway 58 southbound overpass east a distance of 700 feet.  

b. Iowa Highway 58, from its intersection with First Street south to a point 1,300 feet north of its 
intersection with Greenhill Road.  

c. U.S. Highway 218 southbound, from a point 2,000 feet north of its intersection with Lincoln 
Street south to its intersection with First Street.  

d. U.S. Highway 218 northbound, from its intersection with First Street north to a point 410 feet 
north of its intersection with Lincoln Street.  

(16) 65 miles per hour. 65 miles per hour on the following streets and/or highways as indicated:  

a. First Street (East) eastbound, from a point 700 feet east of its intersection with the midpoint 
between the Iowa Highway 58 northbound overpass and the Iowa Highway 58 southbound 
overpass east to the east city limits.  

b. First Street (East) westbound, from the east city limits west to a point 600 feet east of its 
intersection with the midpoint between the Iowa Highway 58 northbound overpass and the Iowa 
Highway 58 southbound overpass.  

c. U.S. Highway 218 southbound, from the north city limits south to a point 2,000 feet north of its 
intersection with Lincoln Street.  

d. U.S. Highway 218 northbound, from a point 410 feet north of its intersection with Lincoln Street 
north to the north city limits.  

(Code 2017, § 26-207; Ord. No. 1935, §§ 2, 3, 2-25-1991; Ord. No. 1981, §§ 1—5, 7-13-1992; Ord. No. 1982, § 1, 7-
13-1992; Ord. No. 2002, §§ 1, 2, 1-11-1993; Ord. No. 2005, §§ 1, 2, 2-22-1993; Ord. No. 2116, §§ 2, 3, 9-11-1995; 
Ord. No. 2199, § 1, 8-11-1997; Ord. No. 2238, §§ 1, 2, 6-22-1998; Ord. No. 2244, § 2, 10-12-1998; Ord. No. 2314, §§ 
1, 2, 11-13-2000; Ord. No. 2315, §§ 1—5, 11-13-2000; Ord. No. 2325, §§ 1—3, 2-12-2001; Ord. No. 2358, §§ 1—3, 
11-26-2001; Ord. No. 2402, §§ 1, 2, 11-25-2002; Ord. No. 2403, §§ 1, 2, 11-25-2002; Ord. No. 2440, §§ 1, 2, 7-14-
2003; Ord. No. 2451, §§ 1—3, 9-22-2003; Ord. No. 2543, §§ 1, 2, 8-22-2005; Ord. No. 2589, §§ 1—6, 7-10-2006; 
Ord. No. 2601, §§ 1, 2, 9-25-2006; Ord. No. 2704, §§ 1—3, 2-22-2010; Ord. No. 2732, § 1, 2-28-2011; Ord. No. 
2767, §§ 1—4, 6-11-2012; Ord. No. 2772, §§ 1, 2, 7-23-2012; Ord. No. 2835, §§ 1, 2, 2-2-2015; Ord. No. 2898, §§ 1, 
2, 3-20-2017; Ord. No. 2917, §§ 1, 2, 2-19-2018; Ord. No. 2927, 6-18-2018; Ord. No. 2957, §§ 1—3, 11-4-2019; Ord. 
No. 2991, 8-2-2021) 

 

54

Item 3.



MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street  

February 19, 2024  
  
The meeting of the Committee of the Whole met at City Hall at 5:25 p.m. on February 19, 2024, with 
the following Committee persons in attendance: Mayor Daniel Laudick, Councilmembers Gil Schultz, 
Chris Latta, Daryl Kruse, Aaron Hawbaker, Dustin Ganfield, Hannah Crisman, and Kelly Dunn. Staff 
members from various City Departments, Steve Bernard – Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) General 
Manager, William Magee - Northern Iowa Railway Company President/CEO, John Riherd – Butler 
County Engineer, a representative from the Waterloo Courier, and members of the community 
attended in person.    
  
Committee of the Whole:  
Mayor Laudick called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the Committee of the Whole 
Agenda, Railroad Crossing Elimination (RCE) Grant Application 2024 – Potential regional application: 
Cedar Falls, Butler County, and Shell Rock. Planner I Chris Sevy provided an overview of and update 
on the 2024 RCE Grant application that includes the removal of 24 railroad crossings. Discussion 
included safety enhancement, removal of the flood gate, and potential anticipated financial impacts 
from eliminating the ability to provide coal to CFU via train if access is removed through this grant. 
CFU General Manager Steve Bernard responded to questions about coal consumption and 
transportation of coal for future needs. A consensus was reached by the Council for staff to move 
forward with the grant application process. 
 
 
Mayor Laudick introduced the second item on the Committee of the Whole Agenda, City of Cedar 
Falls, Budget Presentation. Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations provided 
an overview of the budget process for Fiscal Year 2025 (FY25) and presented a recommendation for 
a max tax levy of $11.93 after extensive review and consideration of existing obligations and new 
Council goals developed in City Council Goal Setting Work Sessions. The FY24 tax levy was $11.40, 
meaning the proposed max tax levy for FY25 is $.53 more than FY24. Discussion included new state 
budget and tax requirements, residential and commercial assessed valuations, backfill funding, the 
Rental Conversion Program, and how unfilled staff positions may impact the FY25 budget. 
The Council was informed that whatever tax levy rate was recommended and potentially approved 
tonight at the Regular City Council meeting can always be lowered after future deliberation but will not 
be able to be increased beyond what is approved at this time. 
 
A motion was made by Hawbaker and seconded by Crisman to recommend to City Council to set the 
FY25 proposed tax levy rate at $11.93 and to hold the special public hearing on April 1, 2024, at 5:15 
p.m. It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to amend the motion to decrease the proposed 
rate to $11.90 with the remainder of the motion staying the same. Hawbaker moved to call the 
question. Motion to call the question carried unanimously. The Mayor then put the motion to amend to 
a voice vote. The motion to amend failed, with Schultz, Latta, Hawbaker, Crisman, and Dunn voting 
Nay. The Mayor called the original motion that would propose $11.93 for the max tax levy for FY25 
budget and upon voice vote, the motion passed unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:42 p.m.  
  
 
Minutes by Kristin Thomas, Administrative Supervisor 

55

Item 4.



56

Item 5.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Laudick and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  February 26, 2024 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no records that would 
prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Deringer’s Public Parlor, 314 ½ Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
 

b) The Stuffed Olive and Roxxy, 314-316 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service -
renewal. 

c) Hillstreet News & Tobacco, 2217 College Street, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 

d) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street, Class B retail alcohol - change in ownership. 

e) Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, Class B retail alcohol - change in ownership. 

f) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive, Class B retail alcohol - change in ownership. 

g) Kwik Spirits, 4116 University Avenue, Class E retail alcohol - change in ownership. 

h) Patton, 317 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - new. 

i) Casey’s, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class E retail alcohol - new. 

57

Item 6.



   OFFICE OF THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

PHONE 319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Laudick   and City Council Members 

    

       FROM:  Ronald S. Gaines, PE, City Administrator 

 

 DATE: January 30, 2024   

  

 SUBJECT: Local Housing Trust Fund  

 

 

 
During the 2023 Goal Setting Session the Mayor and City Council reviewed the Housing 
Needs Assessment, HNA. One of the recommendations that came from the HNA was 
the establishment of a Housing Trust Fund. The City’s Housing Commission has been 
working with INRCOG to establish the Housing Trust Fund.  
 
There is a State Housing Trust Fund that was created by the Iowa Legislature a few 
years ago.  The purpose of this Trust Fund is to provide funding for affordable housing 
projects.  The State Housing Trust Fund is administered by the Iowa Finance Authority. 
The State Housing Trust Fund makes funds available to Local Housing Trust Funds if 
qualified. 
 
The first step in qualification for state funding is certification from the Iowa Finance 
Authority Board of Directors.  One of the requirements for certification is local match 
funding, including at least 10 % of the local match requirement coming from local 
government and/or local private sector contributions.    
 
The Local Housing Trust Fund must be a 501(c)(3) non-profit corporation according to 
state guidelines.  Therefore, organizational documents must be prepared. 
 
I am recommending that part of the City’s local match for the Local Housing Trust Fund 
take the form of funding the attached proposal in the amount of $2620.00 from the 
Beecher, Field, Walker, Morris, Hoffman & Johnson PC law firm to create the Cedar 
Falls Local Housing Trust Fund. 
 
Once the Cedar Falls Local Housing Trust Fund is created it is anticipated that 
additional action by Council will be required in the future, including Resolutions of 
support and consideration of additional local match funding. 
 
Thank you for your consideration.      
 
 

58

Item 8.



   W. LOUIS BEECHER (1921-2012)  
W.L. BEECHER (1891-1976) 

JOHN W. RATHERT (1932-2010) 
JOHN R. WALKER, JR. (RETIRED) 

ADNAN MAHMUTAGIC (OF-COUNSEL) 
 
    www.beecherlaw.com 
                jrichter@beecherlaw.com 

 
 

 

BEECHER, FIELD, WALKER, MORRIS,  
HOFFMAN & JOHNSON, P.C. 

LAWYERS 
COURT SQUARE BUILDING - SUITE 300 

620 LAFAYETTE STREET 
P.O. BOX 178 

WATERLOO, IOWA 50704 
TELEPHONE: (319) 234-1766 

FAX: (319) 234-1225 
 
  
 

 

lass=WordSection2>  
 

 
 

February 13, 2024 
 
Via Email 
 
City of Cedar Falls 
Attn: Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
ron.gaines@cedarfalls.com 

 Re: Proposal – Cedar Falls Local Housing Trust Fund 

Mr. Gaines: 

I am writing regarding the establishment of the Cedar Falls Local Housing Trust Fund. Please accept this 

letter as a summary of the scope of my firm’s work and fees for this project. I believe our services will fall 

into two different categories: 

1. Assistance with the Articles, Bylaws, Conflict-of-Interest Policy, and EIN. We are happy to 

take the lead drafting any or all of these documents, or we can review drafts if INRCOG takes 

responsibility for the initial versions. We would also propose that our office handle the filing of 

the Articles with the Secretary of State and obtaining an EIN from the IRS.  

2. 501(c)(3) Application. Most of my firm’s efforts would be focused on drafting and 

preparing the Form 1023, Application for Tax-Exempt Status for the organization once the Iowa 

nonprofit corporation is set up. Given the anticipated amount of funds that will eventually be 

received by the organization, a Form 1023 (as opposed to a short-form application, Form 1023-

EZ) will have to be completed.  

The filing fee charged by the State of Iowa to form the nonprofit corporation is $20, and the IRS charges 

$600 for submission of Form 1023. Our fees would vary depending on our involvement with item #1 and 

the amount of back-and forth between our office and relevant stakeholders, as well as our office and the 

IRS, for handling item #2. That said, we would be willing to cap our fees for this project at $2,000, with 

the total cap (including filing fees) being $2,620. We would of course pass on any savings to you in the 

event our fees are less than the cap. Should the scope of the project substantially change during the course 

HUGH M. FIELD 
RICHARD R. MORRIS 
THERESA E. HOFFMAN 
ERIC W. JOHNSON 
KEVIN D. AHRENHOLZ 
D. RAYMOND WALTON 
JOHN J. WOOD 
THOMAS C. VERHULST 
NATHAN D. MILLER 
LYNN M. SMITH 
JORDAN M. TALSMA 
KATE B. MITCHELL 
JOHN A. RICHTER 
THOMAS J. RICHTER 
 
 
   

 

59

Item 8.

http://www.beecherlaw.com/
mailto:jrichter@beecherlaw.com


2 

 

of our work, we would also notify you of how, if at all, that may affect our fees before proceeding with 

any additional work. If an engagement letter is needed, we are happy to provide one.  

Please let me know if there are any questions. I can be reached at the mailing address, phone number, 

and fax number listed below in my signature block. Thank you. 

      Sincerely, 

 
 
      John A. Richter 
      BEECHER, FIELD, WALKER, MORRIS, 

HOFFMAN & JOHNSON, P.C. 
620 Lafayette St. Ste. 300 
Waterloo, IA 50703 

      Phone: 319-234-1766 
      Fax: 319-234-1225 

 

cc: Brian Schoon, Executive Director, INRCOG 

60

Item 8.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

  

  

 

  

 
 
 
 TO: The Honorable Mayor Laudick and City Council 
 FROM: Cory Hurless, Cultural Programs Supervisor 

 DATE: February 26, 2024 

SUBJECT:  Iowa Arts Council Cultural Leadership Partners Program Operating 

Support Grant (CLP) 
 
The Hearst Center intends to reapply for the Iowa Arts Council Cultural Leadership Partners 
Program Operating Support Grant opportunity (CLP Grant). If awarded, this grant opportunity 
would provide a 3-year grant award of $30,000, with an annual disbursement of $10,000. In 
2021, the Hearst was recognized as a Cultural Leadership Partner by the IAC and awarded this 
grant because of the professional quality of its programs and equitable approach to providing a 
variety of arts services to the community. 
 
The grant does not have a match requirement.  The Hearst uses CLP grant funds for education 
supplies, Creative Arts For Everyone (Café) outreach, permanent collection conservation 
projects, and special programs throughout the year such as traveling exhibits or honorariums for 
hosting artists.  Annual disbursement funds must be spent by June 30 each year of the award.  
All grant materials must be submitted by April 1, 2024, with notifications to occur in late spring. 
 
Funding for the program is made possible by an annual appropriation from the Iowa Legislature 
to the Iowa Arts Council, a division of the Iowa Economic Development Authority and by the 
National Endowment for the Arts, a federal agency. 
 
 
Please reach out if you have any questions. 
 
CC: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 
 

61

Item 9.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 

 MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: February 20, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Sponsor Agreement for Panthers on Parade Project 
  
 
The Cedar Falls Tourism & Visitors Bureau is bringing Panthers on Parade, a community pride 
project featuring the University of Northern Iowa’s TC mascot, to the Cedar Valley.  
 
There are 26 new six-foot tall fiberglass mascots that will be displayed at various locations 
throughout the Cedar Falls area. Panthers on Parade sponsorships are $5,500 and cover the 
cost of mascot production, artist stipends, installation, promotions and more.  
 
Tourism staff will assist sponsors with securing an artist, delivery and installation of the mascot, 
up to $500 in repairs during the display period, and promotion of the program through paid and 
earned media.  
 
Staff recommends approving this agreement. 
 
Best regards.  
 
 
Cc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 

62

Item 10.



63

Item 10.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

64

Item 10.



65

Item 11.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

66

Item 11.



67

Item 12.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

68

Item 12.



Panthers on Parade Sponsorship 
Mascot Parade May – October 2024 

 
This Sponsorship Agreement is between _____________________________who resides at 
__________________________________ (Sponsor) and the City of Cedar Falls (City) for the purpose of 
the Panthers on Parade community pride project. This project is intended as a temporary display of 
mascots to atract residents and visitors to view them at different loca�ons throughout the community.  
 
1. City Obliga�ons 

The City will: 
• Provide all sponsors access to a variety of approved mascot designs in order that payments 

are received. 
• Contract with and provide payment to ar�sts.  
• Lead communica�on between the sponsors and ar�sts. 
• Pay for and arrange clear coat to all embellished mascots and a small plaque for each mascot 

indica�ng the Ar�st, Mascot Title, and Sponsor. 
• Deliver and install mascot at agreed upon site on or around May 1, 2024, which may include 

concrete pad based on agreed upon site. City will pay for delivery, installa�on and concreate 
pad expenses. 

• Provide up to $500 in repairs during display period of May 1, 2023 – October 27, 2024. 
• Promote Panthers on Parade to local, statewide, and regional audiences encouraging 

visita�on to each mascot loca�on through paid and earned media. 
 

2. Sponsor Obliga�ons 
• Pay $5,500 due to City of Cedar Falls by January 5, 2024.  
• Select an approved mascot embellishment design at �me of payment. 
• Work with City on installa�on loca�on and have representa�ve onsite during installa�on. 
• Own the embellished 6’ fiberglass mascot upon installa�on. 
• Allow the City the rights to the name, image, likeness of the mascot once embellished, along 

with the area of Sponsor’s property where mascot is installed.  
• Display in a public and preferably outdoor se�ng from installa�on through October 27, 2024 for 

ini�al campaign launch. 
• Communicate any damages to mascot to the City project manager during public display period. 

Consider early removal of mascot if damages incurred during public display period are above 
City’s alloted $500 repair expense and sponsor is not interested in funding full repair. 

• Optional: Sponsor may move mascot indoors following ini�al display period ending October 27, 
2024, at sponsor’s expense. If showing excessive wear and tear at any �me following October 27, 
2024, sponsor must remove mascot for repairs. 

• Optional: Advise City by October 1, 2024, of request to pick up concrete pad if it was part of 
ini�al installa�on. Mascots are not eligible for City pick up. 

 
Sponsor 
Name:__________________________________  Title:__________________________________ 
 
Signature:________________________________            Date:___________________________________ 

Aaron Brummer CEO

11/6/2023
69

Item 13.

PickarJ
Typewritten Text
Cedar Valley Dental Associates

PickarJ
Typewritten Text
3722 Cedar Heights Dr



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

70

Item 13.



Panthers on Parade Sponsorship

Mascot Parade May – October 2024

This Sponsorship Agreement is between _____________________________who resides at

__________________________________ (Sponsor) and the City of Cedar Falls (City) for the purpose of

the Panthers on Parade community pride project. This project is intended as a temporary display of

mascots to attract residents and visitors to view them at different locations throughout the community.

1. City Obligations

The City will:

● Provide all sponsors access to a variety of approved mascot designs in order that payments

are received.

● Contract with and provide payment to artists.

● Lead communication between the sponsors and artists.

● Pay for and arrange clear coat to all embellished mascots and a small plaque for each mascot

indicating the Artist, Mascot Title, and Sponsor.

● Deliver and install mascot at agreed upon site on or around May 1, 2024, which may include

concrete pad based on agreed upon site. City will pay for delivery, installation and concreate

pad expenses.

● Provide up to $500 in repairs during display period of May 1, 2023 – October 27, 2024.

● Promote Panthers on Parade to local, statewide, and regional audiences encouraging

visitation to each mascot location through paid and earned media.

2. Sponsor Obligations

● Pay $5,500 due to City of Cedar Falls by January 5, 2024.

● Select an approved mascot embellishment design at time of payment.

● Work with City on installation location and have representative onsite during installation.

● Own the embellished 6’ fiberglass mascot upon installation.

● Allow the City the rights to the name, image, likeness of the mascot once embellished, along

with the area of Sponsor’s property where mascot is installed.

● Display in a public and preferably outdoor setting from installation through October 27, 2024.

● Communicate any damages to mascot to the City project manager during public display period.

Consider early removal of mascot if damages incurred during public display period are above

City’s allotted $500 repair expense and sponsor is not interested in funding full repair.

● Move, remove or discard mascot following display period ending October 27, 2024, at sponsor’s

expense. If showing wear and tear at any time following October 27, 2024, sponsor must remove

mascot.

● Advise City by October 1, 2024, of request to pick up concrete pad if it was part of initial

installation. Mascots are not eligible for City pick up.

Sponsor

Name:__________________________________ Title:__________________________________

Signature:________________________________ Date:___________________________________

71

Item 14.

Hannah Crisman
College Hill Partnership

Hannah Crisman
2304 College Street

Hannah Crisman

Hannah Crisman

Hannah Crisman

Hannah Crisman

Hannah Crisman

Hannah Crisman

Hannah Crisman
President, Board of Directors

Hannah Crisman
Hannah Crisman

Hannah Crisman
9/14/23



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

72

Item 14.



73

Item 15.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

74

Item 15.



75

Item 16.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

76

Item 16.



77

Item 17.



78

Item 17.



79

Item 18.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

80

Item 18.



81

Item 19.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

82

Item 19.



83

Item 20.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

84

Item 20.



85

Item 21.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

86

Item 21.



87

Item 22.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

88

Item 22.



89

Item 23.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

90

Item 23.



91

Item 24.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

92

Item 24.



93

Item 25.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

94

Item 25.



95

Item 26.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

96

Item 26.



 

97

Item 27.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

98

Item 27.



99

Item 28.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

100

Item 28.



101

Item 29.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

102

Item 29.



103

Item 30.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

104

Item 30.



105

Item 31.



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

106

Item 31.



Panthers on Parade Sponsorship 
Mascot Parade May – October 2024 

This Sponsorship Agreement is between _____________________________who resides at 
__________________________________ (Sponsor) and the City of Cedar Falls (City) for the purpose of 
the Panthers on Parade community pride project. This project is intended as a temporary display of 
mascots to aAract residents and visitors to view them at different locaDons throughout the community.  

1. City Obliga=ons 
The City will: 

• Provide all sponsors access to a variety of approved mascot designs in order that payments 
are received. 

• Contract with and provide payment to arDsts.  
• Lead communicaDon between the sponsors and arDsts. 
• Pay for and arrange clear coat to all embellished mascots and a small plaque for each mascot 

indicaDng the ArDst, Mascot Title, and Sponsor. 
• Deliver and install mascot at agreed upon site on or around May 1, 2024, which may include 

concrete pad based on agreed upon site. City will pay for delivery, installaDon and concreate 
pad expenses. 

• Provide up to $500 in repairs during display period of May 1, 2023 – October 27, 2024. 
• Promote Panthers on Parade to local, statewide, and regional audiences encouraging 

visitaDon to each mascot locaDon through paid and earned media. 

2. Sponsor Obliga=ons 
• Pay $5,500 due to City of Cedar Falls by January 5, 2024.  
• Select an approved mascot embellishment design at Dme of payment. 
• Work with City on installaDon locaDon and have representaDve onsite during installaDon. 
• Own the embellished 6’ fiberglass mascot upon installaDon. 
• Allow the City the rights to the name, image, likeness of the mascot once embellished, along 

with the area of Sponsor’s property where mascot is installed.  
• Display in a public and preferably outdoor se\ng from installaDon through October 27, 2024 for 

iniDal campaign launch. 
• Communicate any damages to mascot to the City project manager during public display period. 

Consider early removal of mascot if damages incurred during public display period are above 
City’s alloAed $500 repair expense and sponsor is not interested in funding full repair. 

• Op#onal: Sponsor may move mascot indoors following iniDal display period ending October 27, 
2024, at sponsor’s expense. If showing excessive wear and tear at any Dme following October 27, 
2024, sponsor must remove mascot for repairs. 

• Op#onal: Advise City by October 1, 2024, of request to pick up concrete pad if it was part of 
iniDal installaDon. Mascots are not eligible for City pick up. 

Sponsor 
Name:__________________________________  Title:__________________________________ 

Signature:________________________________            Date:___________________________________

107

Item 32.

Jay Morales
Western Home Communities

Jay Morales
5307 Caraway Ln, Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Jay Morales
Jay Morales for Western Home Communities

Jay Morales
Digital Marketing Manager

Jay Morales
Oct 3, 2023



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

108

Item 32.



109

Item 33.

PickarJ
Typewritten Text
Witham Auto

PickarJ
Typewritten Text
2728 S Main St, Cedar Falls



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

110

Item 33.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 

 MEMORANDUM 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: February 20, 2024 

 SUBJECT: Temporary Encroachment Agreements for Panthers on Parade Project 
  
 
The Cedar Falls Tourism & Visitors Bureau is bringing Panthers on Parade, a community pride 
project featuring the University of Northern Iowa’s TC mascot, to the Cedar Valley. The project 
includes 26 new six-foot tall fiberglass mascots embellished by local artists and displayed at 
various locations throughout the Cedar Falls area from May through October 2024. The project 
has engaged local business sponsors to cover project expenses. 
 
Four sponsor businesses and organizations are seeking a temporary encroachment agreement 
to display their TC mascot on public property during the display period beginning no earlier than 
May 1, 2024 and ending no later than November 10, 2024. Please note the included sponsor 
agreements (exhibit b) will be updated upon approval by City Council. 
 
Staff recommends approval. 
 
Best regards.  
 
 
Cc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 

111

Item 34.



 
 

 
 
 

Prepared by: Cedar Falls Community Development Department, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 273-8600 
 

TEMPORARY ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT 
 

THIS ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT is entered into by and between College Hill Neighborhood 
Association doing business as College Hill Partnership (hereinafter “Applicant”), and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa (hereinafter the “City”), on this _____ day of ____________________, 20___. 
 
WHEREAS, The Cedar Falls Tourism & Visitors Bureau is bringing “Panthers on Parade”, a community 
pride project featuring the University of Northern Iowa’s “TC” mascot, to the Cedar Valley; and 
 
WHEREAS, Approximately 25 six-foot tall fiberglass mascots will be embellished by local artists and 
displayed at various locations throughout Cedar Falls and the Cedar Valley from May through October 
2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant is purchasing and embellishing one of the six-foot tall fiberglass mascots, 
(hereinafter the “Encroachment”) and proposes to temporarily place and maintain said mascot in a 
specified area within the City’s public right-of-way pursuant to this agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, a site plan illustrating the location of the Encroachment Area within the public right-of-way 
is attached hereto, marked Exhibit “A”, and by this reference incorporated herein (hereinafter the “Site 
Plan”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City will allow the Encroachment in the City’s public right-of-way as depicted in Exhibit 
“A”, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and the Applicant have reached agreement thereon, and desire to reduce their 
agreement to writing. 
 
THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY MUTUALLY AGREED by and between the City and the Applicant, as 
follows: 
 

1. Acknowledgment of City Ownership of Public Right-of-Way. Applicant hereby acknowledges, 
recognizes and affirms the existence and public ownership of the public right-of-way, and claims 
no rights or interests therein, except to the limited extent expressly provided for in this 
Agreement. 

2. Grant of Encroachment. The City hereby grants Applicant a non-exclusive, limited license and 
right to temporarily place and maintain the Encroachment within the Encroachment Area of the 
public right-of-way as shown in exhibit “A”, subject, however, to the rights of the City, of Cedar 
Falls Utilities, and of any other public or private corporation to which the City has granted a 
utility license or right-of-way license, for access over, under, or upon the public right-of-way, and 
is expressly subject, however, to the condition that any damage that occurs to the Encroachment 
or Encroachment Area during the term of this Agreement shall be at the sole risk and expense of 
Applicant, including any expenses relating to removal or replacement of the Encroachment, as 
provided herein.  Installation of the Encroachment shall be done by the City at the City’s cost 

February 2417th

112

Item 34.



2 
 

pursuant to the Panthers on Parade Sponsorship Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

3. Removal or Relocation at Request of City, Cedar Falls Utilities, or Other Utility Provider. If, for 
any reason, it is necessary to undertake any work which cannot reasonably be accomplished 
without the removal of Applicant’s Encroachment, then, upon seven (7) days written notice to 
Applicant from the City, Cedar Falls Utilities, or Other Utility Provider having a valid permit 
from the City to do the work, Cedar Falls Public Works, or their designated contractor shall 
remove the Encroachment from the Encroachment Area. If the City, in consultation with the 
Applicant, determines an acceptable alternate location for the Encroachment, whether temporarily 
or for the remainder of the Agreement Term, it may be moved to that new location.  

4. Removal of Encroachment at Request of City. Applicant also acknowledges and agrees that the 
City may, upon seven (7) days written notice, require removal or relocation of the Encroachment 
from the Encroachment Area, if the City determines the removal of the Encroachment is 
necessary or appropriate for any reason. 

5. Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall be from May 1st, 2024 until November 
10th, 2024, unless terminated otherwise pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement. 

6. Termination of Agreement. This Agreement shall terminate no later than November 10th, 2024 
but may be terminated earlier upon the occurrence of any one of the following events: 

a. The Encroachment is discontinued by Applicant and no longer continues to exist; or 

b. Applicant is required to permanently remove the Encroachment as provided in paragraph 
3 or in paragraph 4 of this Agreement. 

Upon termination by the expiration of the Term or any one or more of the foregoing events, 
Applicant shall contact Cedar Falls Public Works to arrange pick-up of the slab on which the 
Encroachment is fastened, to be removed on the same day that Applicant will remove the 
Encroachment from the Public Right-of-Way, and this Agreement shall thereupon automatically 
terminate. With the exception of slab removal, the removal of the Encroachment upon 
termination of this agreement is at the sole cost of the Applicant. In no case shall the 
Encroachment be on public property after November 10th, 2024. If not removed by that date, the 
City will remove the Encroachment at the Applicant’s cost. Any costs incurred by the City related 
to removal and other handling of the Encroachment above and beyond removal of the slab will be 
billed to and must be paid by the Applicant. In addition, the Applicant is responsible for the cost 
of repairing any damage to the public right-of-way caused by or related to the display of the 
mascot within the City’s public right-of-way.   

7. No Restriction on City Rights. Nothing in this Agreement shall restrict the right of the City to 
engage in any work anywhere within the public right-of-way of the City, whether occupied by 
Applicant’s Encroachment or otherwise. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the City 
and Cedar Falls Utilities reserve the right to install any public infrastructure that may be deemed 
necessary or proper by the City or Cedar Falls Utilities anywhere within the public right-of-way, 
whether occupied by the Encroachment or not. The City may also permit other utility providers or 
public or private corporations to install facilities within the public right-of-way of the City, and 
the City shall not be liable to Applicant for any damages to the Encroachment or to the Property 
of Applicant arising out of any work by such other entities.  

113

Item 34.



3 
 

8. Powers of City. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, nothing in this Agreement shall 
be construed to limit any right or power of the City in any manner whatsoever, whether relating to 
the City’s public right-of-way or any other rights and powers of the City. 

9. Release of Liability and Indemnification. Applicant shall protect, indemnify, defend, and hold the 
City and its officers, agents and officials, and Cedar Falls Utilities, and any utility provider or 
other public or private corporation to which the City has granted a license to install utility 
facilities in the public right-of-way, harmless from any claim or liability, and against all damages 
or expenses arising directly or indirectly out of the use, presence, maintenance or removal of the 
Encroachment, including all expenses and reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of litigation. 
Applicant agrees to accept the risk of having the Encroachment located in the public right-of-
way, including the possible risk of damage or injury to the Encroachment or the Encroachment 
Area, and agrees to release and discharge the City, Cedar Falls Utilities, and any other public or 
private corporation that has been granted a license to install utility services in the Public Right-of-
Way, for damage or injury to the Encroachment or Encroachment Area. 

10. Delivery of Notices. Any notices hereunder shall be in writing and shall be delivered via certified 
mail and addressed as follows, unless indicated otherwise in the future: 

If to the City: City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 ATTN: City Clerk 
 220 Clay Street 
 Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
If to Applicant or Current Owner: College Hill Neighborhood Association dba 

College Hill Partnership  
  2304 College Street 
  Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 

11. Governing Law; Legal Action. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Iowa. In any legal proceedings to enforce this Agreement, the parties 
agree and consent to submit to the jurisdiction and venue of the Iowa District Court for Black 
Hawk County.  

12. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with any exhibits referenced herein, together 
constitute the entire Agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This 
Agreement may not be modified or amended except by a written instrument signed by both 
parties. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first set forth above. 
 
 
APPLICANT – College Hill Neighborhood Association CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
By: _______________________________________ By: ______________________________ 
      Chris Martin, Executive Board Member Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Kim Kerr, City Clerk 

114

Item 34.



The City of Cedar Falls does not guarantee the accuracy of the 

information contained on maps accessible on this site.  This 

information is provided for demonstration purposes only.  All 

warranties, express and implied, are hereby disclaimed.

City of Cedar Falls

CHP @ 2205 College

2/12/2024
115

Item 34.



Panthers on Parade Sponsorship

Mascot Parade May – October 2024

This Sponsorship Agreement is between _____________________________who resides at

__________________________________ (Sponsor) and the City of Cedar Falls (City) for the purpose of

the Panthers on Parade community pride project. This project is intended as a temporary display of

mascots to attract residents and visitors to view them at different locations throughout the community.

1. City Obligations

The City will:

● Provide all sponsors access to a variety of approved mascot designs in order that payments

are received.

● Contract with and provide payment to artists.

● Lead communication between the sponsors and artists.

● Pay for and arrange clear coat to all embellished mascots and a small plaque for each mascot

indicating the Artist, Mascot Title, and Sponsor.

● Deliver and install mascot at agreed upon site on or around May 1, 2024, which may include

concrete pad based on agreed upon site. City will pay for delivery, installation and concreate

pad expenses.

● Provide up to $500 in repairs during display period of May 1, 2023 – October 27, 2024.

● Promote Panthers on Parade to local, statewide, and regional audiences encouraging

visitation to each mascot location through paid and earned media.

2. Sponsor Obligations

● Pay $5,500 due to City of Cedar Falls by January 5, 2024.

● Select an approved mascot embellishment design at time of payment.

● Work with City on installation location and have representative onsite during installation.

● Own the embellished 6’ fiberglass mascot upon installation.

● Allow the City the rights to the name, image, likeness of the mascot once embellished, along

with the area of Sponsor’s property where mascot is installed.

● Display in a public and preferably outdoor setting from installation through October 27, 2024.

● Communicate any damages to mascot to the City project manager during public display period.

Consider early removal of mascot if damages incurred during public display period are above

City’s allotted $500 repair expense and sponsor is not interested in funding full repair.

● Move, remove or discard mascot following display period ending October 27, 2024, at sponsor’s

expense. If showing wear and tear at any time following October 27, 2024, sponsor must remove

mascot.

● Advise City by October 1, 2024, of request to pick up concrete pad if it was part of initial

installation. Mascots are not eligible for City pick up.

Sponsor

Name:__________________________________ Title:__________________________________

Signature:________________________________ Date:___________________________________

116

Item 34.

Hannah Crisman
College Hill Partnership

Hannah Crisman
2304 College Street

Hannah Crisman

Hannah Crisman

Hannah Crisman

Hannah Crisman

Hannah Crisman

Hannah Crisman

Hannah Crisman
President, Board of Directors

Hannah Crisman
Hannah Crisman

Hannah Crisman
9/14/23

PickarJ
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

117

Item 34.



118

Item 35.



119

Item 35.



120

Item 35.



The City of Cedar Falls does not guarantee the accuracy of the 

information contained on maps accessible on this site.  This 

information is provided for demonstration purposes only.  All 

warranties, express and implied, are hereby disclaimed.

City of Cedar Falls

CB&T - 312 W 1st

2/13/2024
121

Item 35.



122

Item 35.

PickarJ
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

123

Item 35.



124

Item 36.



125

Item 36.



126

Item 36.



The City of Cedar Falls does not guarantee the accuracy of the 

information contained on maps accessible on this site.  This 

information is provided for demonstration purposes only.  All 

warranties, express and implied, are hereby disclaimed.

City of Cedar Falls

201 Washington - 

Structure

2/12/2024
127

Item 36.



128

Item 36.

PickarJ
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

129

Item 36.



 
 

 
 
 

Prepared by: Cedar Falls Community Development Department, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 273-8600 
 

TEMPORARY ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT 
 

THIS ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT is entered into by and between Burtis Core, Inc, dba The 
Brass Tap Cedar Falls (hereinafter “Applicant”), and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (hereinafter the 
“City”), on this _____ day of ____________________, 20___. 
 
WHEREAS, The Cedar Falls Tourism & Visitors Bureau is bringing “Panthers on Parade”, a community 
pride project featuring the University of Northern Iowa’s “TC” mascot, to the Cedar Valley; and 
 
WHEREAS, Approximately 25 six-foot tall fiberglass mascots will be embellished by local artists and 
displayed at various locations throughout Cedar Falls and the Cedar Valley from May through October 
2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Applicant is purchasing and embellishing one of the six-foot tall fiberglass mascots, 
(hereinafter the “Encroachment”) and proposes to temporarily place and maintain said mascot in a 
specified area within the City’s public right-of-way pursuant to this agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, a site plan illustrating the location of the Encroachment Area within the public right-of-way 
is attached hereto, marked Exhibit “A”, and by this reference incorporated herein (hereinafter the “Site 
Plan”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City will allow the Encroachment in the City’s public right-of-way as depicted in Exhibit 
“A”, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and the Applicant have reached agreement thereon, and desire to reduce their 
agreement to writing. 
 
THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY MUTUALLY AGREED by and between the City and the Applicant, as 
follows: 
 

1. Acknowledgment of City Ownership of Public Right-of-Way. Applicant hereby acknowledges, 
recognizes and affirms the existence and public ownership of the public right-of-way, and claims 
no rights or interests therein, except to the limited extent expressly provided for in this 
Agreement. 

2. Grant of Encroachment. The City hereby grants Applicant a non-exclusive, limited license and 
right to temporarily place and maintain the Encroachment within the Encroachment Area of the 
public right-of-way as shown in exhibit “A”, subject, however, to the rights of the City, of Cedar 
Falls Utilities, and of any other public or private corporation to which the City has granted a 
utility license or right-of-way license, for access over, under, or upon the public right-of-way, and 
is expressly subject, however, to the condition that any damage that occurs to the Encroachment 
or Encroachment Area during the term of this Agreement shall be at the sole risk and expense of 
Applicant, including any expenses relating to removal or replacement of the Encroachment, as 
provided herein.  Installation of the Encroachment shall be done by the City at the City’s cost 

130

Item 37.



2 
 

pursuant to the Panthers on Parade Sponsorship Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

3. Removal or Relocation at Request of City, Cedar Falls Utilities, or Other Utility Provider. If, for 
any reason, it is necessary to undertake any work which cannot reasonably be accomplished 
without the removal of Applicant’s Encroachment, then, upon seven (7) days written notice to 
Applicant from the City, Cedar Falls Utilities, or Other Utility Provider having a valid permit 
from the City to do the work, Cedar Falls Public Works, or their designated contractor shall 
remove the Encroachment from the Encroachment Area. If the City, in consultation with the 
Applicant, determines an acceptable alternate location for the Encroachment, whether temporarily 
or for the remainder of the Agreement Term, it may be moved to that new location.  

4. Removal of Encroachment at Request of City. Applicant also acknowledges and agrees that the 
City may, upon seven (7) days written notice, require removal or relocation of the Encroachment 
from the Encroachment Area, if the City determines the removal of the Encroachment is 
necessary or appropriate for any reason. 

5. Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall be from May 1st, 2024 until November 
10th, 2024, unless terminated otherwise pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement. 

6. Termination of Agreement. This Agreement shall terminate no later than November 10th, 2024 
but may be terminated earlier upon the occurrence of any one of the following events: 

a. The Encroachment is discontinued by Applicant and no longer continues to exist; or 

b. Applicant is required to permanently remove the Encroachment as provided in paragraph 
3 or in paragraph 4 of this Agreement. 

Upon termination by the expiration of the Term or any one or more of the foregoing events, 
Applicant shall contact Cedar Falls Public Works to arrange pick-up of the slab on which the 
Encroachment is fastened, to be removed on the same day that Applicant will remove the 
Encroachment from the Public Right-of-Way, and this Agreement shall thereupon automatically 
terminate. With the exception of slab removal, the removal of the Encroachment upon 
termination of this agreement is at the sole cost of the Applicant. In no case shall the 
Encroachment be on public property after November 10th, 2024. If not removed by that date, the 
City will remove the Encroachment at the Applicant’s cost. Any costs incurred by the City related 
to removal and other handling of the Encroachment above and beyond removal of the slab will be 
billed to and must be paid by the Applicant. In addition, the Applicant is responsible for the cost 
of repairing any damage to the public right-of-way caused by or related to the display of the 
mascot within the City’s public right-of-way.   

7. No Restriction on City Rights. Nothing in this Agreement shall restrict the right of the City to 
engage in any work anywhere within the public right-of-way of the City, whether occupied by 
Applicant’s Encroachment or otherwise. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the City 
and Cedar Falls Utilities reserve the right to install any public infrastructure that may be deemed 
necessary or proper by the City or Cedar Falls Utilities anywhere within the public right-of-way, 
whether occupied by the Encroachment or not. The City may also permit other utility providers or 
public or private corporations to install facilities within the public right-of-way of the City, and 
the City shall not be liable to Applicant for any damages to the Encroachment or to the Property 
of Applicant arising out of any work by such other entities.  

131

Item 37.



132

Item 37.



The City of Cedar Falls does not guarantee the accuracy of the 

information contained on maps accessible on this site.  This 

information is provided for demonstration purposes only.  All 

warranties, express and implied, are hereby disclaimed.

City of Cedar Falls

201 Washington - 

Structure

2/12/2024
133

Item 37.



 

134

Item 37.

PickarJ
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
  
By: __________________________________  
        Daniel Laudick, Mayor  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________                  Date: _____________________  
             Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk  
  
  
 

135

Item 37.



 
RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE R-P, PLANNED RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT MASTER 

PLAN AND THE DEVELOPMENTAL PROCEDURES AGREEMENT FOR 54.79 ACRES 

OF LAND LOCATED NORTH OF ALDRICH ELEMENTARY SCHOOL  

AND SOUTH OF W. GREENHILL ROAD  

 

 WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to rezone approximately 54.79 acres of property from R-1 Residence District and 

MU Mixed Use Residential District to R-P Planned Residence District; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the R-P Planned Residence District requires the submittal and approval of a 

master plan and developmental procedures agreement that outlines any specific conditions 

pertaining to the development, any timing and phasing of the project, and other details as 

necessary; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said R-P, Planned Residence District, allows for development flexibility 

according to a master plan to ensure that the area is developed in an orderly manner according to 

the principles of the Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said rezoning request was submitted alongside the master plan for the 54.79 

acres of land located North of Aldrich Elementary School and South of W. Greenhill Road, and 

the principles and provisions of which were to be incorporated into the developmental 

procedures agreement between the City and the owners of the property; and  

  

 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the rezoning request and 

proposed elements of the master plan and found that said rezoning and master plan is consistent 

with the City of Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan and the intent of the R-P Planned Residence 

District and recommended approval thereof by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended approval of the 

rezoning subject to the submitted master plan and a developmental procedures agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best 

interests of the community to approve the master plan and the associated R-P Planned Residence 

District Developmental Procedures Agreement; and  

 

 NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

that the R-P Planned Residence District Master Plan for Panther West Addition, attached hereto 

as Exhibit A, and the Developmental Procedures Agreement, attached hereto and incorporated 

herein as Exhibit B, are hereby approved for 54.79 acres of land located North of Aldrich 

Elementary School and South of W. Greenhill Road, as illustrated on Exhibit A.   

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this _____day of__________, 2024. 

136

Item 38.



 

 

_________________________ 

                                                                           Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

        

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

137

Item 38.



1/25/2024

LEGEND

ARBORS DRIVE

A
RB

O
RS

 D
RI

V
E

MADELINE STREET MADELINE STREET

JO
SE

PH
 D

R
IV

E

JOSEPH DRIVE

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T
 R

-P
 M

A
ST

ER
 P

LA
N

PA
N

T
H

ER
 F

A
R
M

S,
 L

LC
PN

: 
  
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
 #

PA
N

T
H

ER
 W

ES
T
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
S

N
A

T
H

A
N

 L
A

N
E

PH
ASE

 1

PH
ASE

 2

PH
ASE

 3

PH
ASE

 4

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

A-1

R-P

RICHARD ROAD

1 of 1
 BUILDING TYPES

 BUILDING SETBACKS 

UNIVER
SIT

Y AVEN
UE

RICHARD
ROAD

ED
EN

 W
A

Y

LEIGH
LANE

ANDY
AVE.

BLYTHE
BLVD.

GREENHILL ROAD

IR
O

N
W

O
O

D
D

R
IV

E

BENNETT LANE

EX
H

IB
IT

 A

138

Item 38.



Exhibit B

139

Item 38.



140

Item 38.



141

Item 38.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Thomas Weintraut, AICP, Planner III 
 

 DATE: March 3, 2024 

SUBJECT: Resolution to submit an application for a Swift Current Mitigation Grant to 
purchase Repetitive Loss and Severe Repetitive Loss properties in Northern 
Cedar Falls 

 
This grant funding opportunity is part of a Federal program made available to states after a 
major disaster declaration. The State of Iowa received a pool of approximately $10M because 
of the disaster declaration from flooding along the Mississippi River last spring. This funding 
can be used for flood mitigation of properties that; 1) have active flood insurance policies, 2) 
have not been mitigated, and 3) are identified as repetitive or severe repetitive loss properties 
by the National Flood Insurance Program and Flood Mitigation Assistance Program. 
 
This grant is managed by the Iowa Department of Homeland Security and Emergency 
Management (IDHSEM) and is not a nationally competitive grant and therefore has a greater 
prospect of being awarded to the City. This grant would not require any matching funds; 
however, as with grant programs, the City would oversee the management of the project and 
incur any cost associated with the purchase and demolition costs upfront and then submit for 
payment reimbursement. The grant application can include up to $32,000 in eligible relocation 
benefits for properties owners. 
 
Staff has identified seven (7) residential and three (commercial) properties which would meet 
the eligibility requirements for the grant funding opportunity.   
 
One of the adopted Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY24 is achieved 
with this project: 

4.B.3) Continue the systematic and strategic buyout of flood-prone properties to retain 
viable areas based on quality of infrastructure, elevation, and contiguousness. 

 
The Department of Community Development recommends that the City Council approve a 
resolution to submit and application to the ISHSEM for a Swift Current grant to purchase seven 
(7) residential and three (3) commercial properties. If you have questions, please contact the 
Community Development Department.  
 
xc:  Karen Howard, AICP, Planning and Community Services Manager 

Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
 Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations   

142

Item 39.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: February 26, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project  
  Project No. SW-000-3301 
   Project Final Acceptance  
 
The 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project is completed and ready for final acceptance. This 
project involved the repair of deficient sidewalk adjacent to various property owners. This 
project will assess the cost of repair to the individual property owners. 
 
 This project was under contract with Boulder Contracting, LLC of Grundy Center, Iowa. 
Attached please find the following final documents: 
  -  Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 
   -  Copy of Maintenance Bond, Boulder Contracting, LLC  
   - Final Breakdown of Expenditures  
 
The following lien waivers have been received, reviewed by the Engineering Division, and 
are on file with the City Clerk: 
 

Boulder Contracting, LLC Suppliers: 
Benton’s Ready Mix Concrete  

Boulder Contracting, LLC subcontractors: 
Maloney Lawn Landscape Snow  

 143

Item 40.



This project was funded by Special Assessment and below is a breakdown of final 
contract costs by the funding source: 
 

Funding Source Attributed Costs 

Special Assessment   $63,091.05 

 
I certify that the public improvements for the 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project was 
completed in reasonable compliance with the project plans and specifications. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
            Brett Armstrong   Date 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer  
 
 
 
 

  

2/26/24 

144

Item 40.



2/6/2024

145

Item 40.



146

Item 40.



147

Item 40.



148

Item 40.



149

Item 40.



150

Item 40.



151

Item 40.



152

Item 40.



153

Item 40.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: February 23, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 1 
  Project No. SW-000-3301 
   Presentation of Final Statement of Expenditures for Material and Labor  
 
The 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project for Zone 1 is completed and ready for 
assessment. The project repaired deficient sidewalks adjacent to 63 private properties 
for a total assessment cost of $63,091.05.  
 
In 2022, approximately 150 notices were sent out for defective or missing sidewalks. 
The notices informed the property owners of their responsibility to repair the adjacent 
sidewalk. If the property owners didn’t repair the sidewalk, the City would repair the 
sidewalk and assess the property. Sixty percent of the property owners notified repaired 
the defective or missing sidewalk, while forty percent of the property owners elected to 
have the City repair the defective sidewalk.  The average cost of a defective sidewalk is 
$29.00 per square foot. 
 
Attached please find the Final Statement of Expenditures for Material and Labor for the 
2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project for Zone 1.  
 
I recommend that the City Council approve and accept the Final Statement of 
Expenditures for Material and Labor for the 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project for Zone 
1. 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer  
 
 
 
 

  

154

Item 41.



LOCATION 

NO.
Property Owner Mailing Address City State Zip Code LOCATION Legal Description

Item No. 1 OFF-

SITE TOPSOIL 

(C.Y.)

Unit Price Extended Price

Item No. 2    

REMOVAL OF 

SIDEWALK 

(S.Y.)

 Unit 

Price 

 Extended 

Price 

Item No. 3  

SIDEWALK 

4" P.C.C., 

Class "C" 

(S.Y.)

 Unit Price  Extended Price 

Item No. 4 

REPLACE 

SIDEWALK 

6" P.C.C., 

Class "C" 

(S.F.)

 Unit Price Extended Price

Item No. 5 

TEMPORA

RY 

TRAFFIC 

CONTROL 

(L.S.)

Unit Price
Extended 

Price

Item No. 6       

SEEDING, 

FERTILIZING 

AND 

MULCHING 

FOR 

HYDRAULIC 

SEEDING (S.F.)

Unit Price
Extended 

Price
Totals

1 Jenifer Ward 1504 W. 3rd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1504 W. 3rd 8914-11-258-008 0.18 225.00$                 40.50$                   3.0 43.00$   130.38$            3.0 95.00$           289.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          10.4 5.75$           59.80$         590.94$                    

2 Melissa L. Beall 1607 W. 4th St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1607 W. 4th 8914-11-258-014 0.18 225.00$                 40.50$                   4.1 43.00$   177.68$            2.1 95.00$           203.56$            2.0 225.00$   450.00$            0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       13.0 5.75$           74.75$         1,079.23$                

3 Randel D. Petersen 2805 Dover Dr. Mckinney TX 75069 1415 W. 2nd 8914-11-253-009 0.21 225.00$                 47.25$                   2.6 43.00$   113.18$            2.6 95.00$           251.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          11.4 5.75$           65.55$         548.24$                    

4 Larsen Rentals 220 W Lone Tree Rd. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1405 W. 2nd 8914-11-253-004 0.15 225.00$                 33.75$                   2.1 43.00$   91.68$              2.1 95.00$           203.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          9.2 5.75$           52.90$         453.09$                    

5 SINDT Properties LLC 107 Fieldstone Dr. Reinbeck IA 50669 1323 W. 2nd 8914-11-254-007 0.15 225.00$                 33.75$                   2.3 43.00$   100.28$            2.3 95.00$           222.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          8.0 5.75$           46.00$         473.79$                    

6 Lori R. Rodgers 1309 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1309 W. 2nd 8914-11-254-005 0.30 225.00$                 67.50$                   3.6 43.00$   156.18$            3.6 95.00$           346.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       15.5 5.75$           89.13$         791.60$                    

7 John H. Allan 4129 Thresher Ct. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1304 W. 2nd 8914-11-257-004 0.37 225.00$                 83.25$                   7.0 43.00$   302.38$            7.0 95.00$           669.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   184.62$       20.2 5.75$           116.15$       1,365.12$                

8 Scott A. Green 20298 Y Ave. Burlington Junction MO 64428 1323 W. 3rd 8914-11-257-007 0.20 225.00$                 45.00$                   3.1 43.00$   134.68$            3.1 95.00$           298.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          11.0 5.75$           63.25$         612.69$                    

9 Justin L Reardon 1303 W. 4th St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1303 W. 4th 8914-11-260-005 0.30 225.00$                 67.50$                   3.7 43.00$   160.48$            3.7 95.00$           355.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       16.0 5.75$           92.00$         808.28$                    

10 Marilyn Andersen 1222 W. 1st St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1222 W. 1st 8914-11-276-030 0.18 225.00$                 40.50$                   3.9 43.00$   169.08$            2.4 95.00$           232.06$            1.5 225.00$   337.50$            0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       10.0 5.75$           57.50$         969.38$                    

11 Carly Steiert 1227 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1227 W. 2nd 8914-11-276-015 0.30 225.00$                 67.50$                   3.7 43.00$   160.48$            3.7 95.00$           355.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       16.0 5.75$           92.00$         808.28$                    

12 Lawrence M. Lyons 1203 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1203 W. 2nd 8914-11-276-012 0.15 225.00$                 33.75$                   1.7 43.00$   74.48$              1.7 95.00$           165.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          8.0 5.75$           46.00$         390.99$                    

13 Brandon Holcomb 1222 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1222 W. 2nd 8914-11-279-017 0.30 225.00$                 67.50$                   4.7 43.00$   203.48$            4.7 95.00$           450.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       16.4 5.75$           94.30$         948.58$                    

14 Kasey N. Westley 1215 W. 3rd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1215 W. 3rd 8914-11-279-015 0.38 225.00$                 85.50$                   5.8 43.00$   250.78$            5.8 95.00$           555.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       20.6 5.75$           118.45$       1,142.53$                

15 Michael O. Kittleson Trust 1703 220th St. Waverly IA 50677 1216 W. 3rd 8914-11-282-002 0.18 225.00$                 40.50$                   8.1 43.00$   349.68$            2.4 95.00$           232.06$            5.7 225.00$   1,282.50$         0.02 8,000.00$   184.62$       8.0 5.75$           46.00$         2,145.02$                

16 Lorraine D. Meyer 1110 W. 3rd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1110 W. 3rd 8914-11-282-007 0.18 225.00$                 40.50$                   2.8 43.00$   121.78$            2.8 95.00$           270.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          9.6 5.75$           55.20$         558.74$                    

17 Ashlee M. Mclane 1021 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1021 W. 2nd 8914-11-277-004 0.15 225.00$                 33.75$                   2.3 43.00$   100.28$            2.3 95.00$           222.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          8.0 5.75$           46.00$         473.79$                    

18 Sara J. Syhlman 1024 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 1024 W. 2nd 8914-11-280-001 0.18 225.00$                 40.50$                   2.9 43.00$   126.08$            2.9 95.00$           279.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          10.2 5.75$           58.65$         575.99$                    

19 Schuerman Properties LLC PO Box 214 Cedar Falls IA 50613 1008 W. 2nd 8914-11-280-004 0.79 225.00$                 177.75$                 12.5 43.00$   538.88$            12.5 95.00$           1,191.56$         0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.04 8,000.00$   307.69$       42.4 5.75$           243.80$       2,469.34$                

20 Lisa S. Proctor 802 N Johnson St Parkersburg IA 50665 216 Catherine 8914-11-280-012 0.18 225.00$                 40.50$                   2.8 43.00$   121.78$            2.8 95.00$           270.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          9.8 5.75$           56.35$         559.89$                    

21 Gregory A. Houseal 817 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 817 W. 2nd 8914-12-152-008 0.75 225.00$                 168.75$                 9.4 43.00$   405.58$            9.4 95.00$           897.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.04 8,000.00$   307.69$       41.6 5.75$           239.20$       2,027.94$                

22 Kassie Walton 813 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 813 W. 2nd 8914-12-152-007 0.15 225.00$                 33.75$                   1.9 43.00$   83.08$              1.9 95.00$           184.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          8.0 5.75$           46.00$         418.59$                    

23 Dora L. Williams 829 W. 3rd St. Cedar Falls iA 50613 829 W. 3rd 8914-11-281-009 0.15 225.00$                 33.75$                   2.4 43.00$   104.58$            2.4 95.00$           232.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          8.0 5.75$           46.00$         487.59$                    

24 Kelly Boeschen 825 W. 3rd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 825 W. 3rd 8914-11-281-007 0.15 225.00$                 33.75$                   2.4 43.00$   104.58$            2.4 95.00$           232.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          8.0 5.75$           46.00$         487.59$                    

25 Brad W. Hunter 809 W. 3rd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 809 W. 3rd 8914-12-156-006 0.30 225.00$                 67.50$                   3.6 43.00$   156.18$            3.6 95.00$           346.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       16.0 5.75$           92.00$         794.48$                    

26 RENTCF LLC 2501 Falls Ave Waterloo IA 50701 203 Olive St. 8914-12-156-002 0.12 225.00$                 27.00$                   1.9 43.00$   83.08$              1.9 95.00$           184.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          6.4 5.75$           36.80$         402.64$                    

27 Christopher Olsen PO BOX 482 Cedar Falls IA 50613 803 W. 4th 8914-12-160-007 0.31 225.00$                 69.75$                   4.8 43.00$   207.78$            4.8 95.00$           460.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       16.8 5.75$           96.60$         966.93$                    

28 Mark E. Ludwig 109 Walnut St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 109 Walnut 8914-12-153-004 0.15 225.00$                 33.75$                   2.5 43.00$   108.88$            1.2 95.00$           114.42$            1.2 225.00$   270.00$            0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          8.0 5.75$           46.00$         644.26$                    

29 Joshua 24 15 Properties LLC PO Box 304 Cedar Falls IA 50613 121 Walnut 8914-12-153-006 0.30 225.00$                 67.50$                   4.5 43.00$   194.88$            4.5 95.00$           431.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       16.0 5.75$           92.00$         918.68$                    

30 Cade D. Kramer 716 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 716 W. 2nd 8914-12-157-002 0.17 225.00$                 38.25$                   2.2 43.00$   95.98$              2.2 95.00$           213.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          9.2 5.75$           52.90$         471.39$                    

31 Emily A. Eisenman 202 Olive St. Apt 206 Cedar Falls IA 50613 202 Olive 8914-12-157-001 0.30 225.00$                 67.50$                   4.4 43.00$   190.58$            4.4 95.00$           422.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       16.0 5.75$           92.00$         904.88$                    

32 Welsch Investments LLC 6701 Strayer Rd. Cedar Falls IA 50613 209 Walnut 8914-12-157-012 0.36 225.00$                 81.00$                   5.5 43.00$   237.88$            5.5 95.00$           526.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       19.2 5.75$           110.40$       1,088.58$                

33 Zachary Wolf 3725 Southlawn Rd. Cedar Falls IA 50613 723 W. 3rd 8914-12-157-008 0.71 225.00$                 159.75$                 10.5 43.00$   452.88$            10.5 95.00$           1,001.56$         0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.04 8,000.00$   307.69$       38.4 5.75$           220.80$       2,152.34$                

34 Victoria Hoffman 709 W. 3rd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 709 W. 3rd 8914-12-157-006 0.18 225.00$                 40.50$                   2.9 43.00$   126.08$            2.9 95.00$           279.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          10.0 5.75$           57.50$         574.84$                    

35 Larry E. Evans 716 W. 3rd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 716 W. 3rd 8914-12-161-002 0.42 225.00$                 94.50$                   6.3 43.00$   272.28$            6.3 95.00$           602.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   184.62$       22.6 5.75$           129.95$       1,293.57$                

36 Robert M. Green 314 Olive St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 314 Olive 8914-12-161-011 0.27 225.00$                 60.75$                   4.2 43.00$   181.98$            4.2 95.00$           403.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       16.0 5.75$           92.00$         870.53$                    

37 Lori L. Dove 715 W. 4th St. Waterloo IA 50701 715 W. 4th 8914-12-161-009 0.36 225.00$                 81.00$                   4.7 43.00$   203.48$            4.7 95.00$           450.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       16.8 5.75$           96.60$         964.38$                    

38 Alexander J. Lyles 321 Walnut St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 321 Walnut 8914-12-161-013 1.08 225.00$                 243.00$                 16.3 43.00$   702.28$            16.3 95.00$           1,552.56$         0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.05 8,000.00$   369.23$       58.5 5.75$           336.38$       3,213.11$                

39 Christopher T. Rew 719 W. 5th St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 719 W. 5th 8914-12-302-008 0.28 225.00$                 63.00$                   5.6 43.00$   242.18$            5.6 95.00$           536.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       15.0 5.75$           86.25$         1,060.23$                

40 Casey W. Anderson 122 Walnut St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 122 Walnut 8914-12-154-006 0.00 225.00$                 -$                       2.4 43.00$   104.58$            0.0 95.00$           0.42$                 2.3 225.00$   517.50$            0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          0.0 5.75$           -$             693.71$                    

41 Heather Miller 622 W. 2nd St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 622 W. 2nd 8914-12-158-001 0.57 225.00$                 128.25$                 9.5 43.00$   408.50$            9.5 95.00$           902.92$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.03 8,000.00$   246.15$       30.8 5.75$           177.10$       1,872.59$                

42 HN Properties LLC PO Box 183 Cedar Falls IA 50613 220/222 Walnut 8914-12-158-010 0.30 225.00$                 67.50$                   4.6 43.00$   199.18$            4.6 95.00$           441.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       16.0 5.75$           92.00$         932.48$                    

43 Nathaniel S. Beach 1759 Thrush Dr. Waterloo IA 50701 609 W. 3rd 8914-12-158-008 0.28 225.00$                 63.00$                   4.2 43.00$   181.98$            4.2 95.00$           403.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       16.0 5.75$           92.00$         872.78$                    

44 Scott A. Green 20298 Y Ave. Burlington Junction MO 64428 606 W. 2nd 8914-12-158-003 0.37 225.00$                 83.25$                   4.5 43.00$   194.88$            4.5 95.00$           431.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       20.0 5.75$           115.00$       957.43$                    

45 Bryce Steiert 2608 Pleasant Dr Cedar Falls IA 50613 621 W. 4th 8914-12-162-010 0.49 225.00$                 110.25$                 6.6 43.00$   285.18$            6.6 95.00$           631.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   184.62$       23.6 5.75$           135.70$       1,356.47$                

46 Owen and Van Swol Enterprises L 323 Iowa St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 323 Iowa 8914-12-162-007 0.79 225.00$                 177.75$                 11.8 43.00$   508.78$            11.8 95.00$           1,125.06$         0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.04 8,000.00$   307.69$       42.6 5.75$           244.95$       2,373.89$                

47 Cole Galles 624 W. 4th St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 624 W. 4th 8914-12-303-001 0.26 225.00$                 58.50$                   3.9 43.00$   169.08$            3.9 95.00$           374.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       14.0 5.75$           80.50$         815.38$                    

48 CND Properties LLC 5110 Algonquin Dr. Cedar Falls IA 50613 409 Iowa 8914-12-303-005 0.16 225.00$                 36.00$                   2.5 43.00$   108.88$            2.5 95.00$           241.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          9.6 5.75$           55.20$         512.84$                    

49 Mary E. Nicol 818 Latham Place Cedar Falls IA 50613 623 W. 6th 8914-12-307-007 0.30 225.00$                 67.50$                   4.6 43.00$   199.18$            4.6 95.00$           441.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       16.4 5.75$           94.30$         934.78$                    

50 C and H Holdings LLC 7314 Chancellor Dr. Cedar Falls IA 50613 523 W. 2nd 8914-12-155-018 0.39 225.00$                 87.75$                   5.9 43.00$   255.08$            5.9 95.00$           564.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   184.62$       21.0 5.75$           120.75$       1,222.42$                

51 Joshua S. Harding 523 W. 4th St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 524 W. 4th 8914-12-304-001 0.94 225.00$                 211.50$                 14.0 43.00$   603.38$            14.0 95.00$           1,334.06$         0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.05 8,000.00$   369.23$       50.4 5.75$           289.80$       2,817.63$                

52 Travis Carolan 5232 Metz Rd. Cedar Falls IA 50613 422 Iowa 8914-12-304-009 0.30 225.00$                 67.50$                   4.5 43.00$   194.88$            4.5 95.00$           431.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       16.0 5.75$           92.00$         918.68$                    

53 Carol Wellman 1008 North Sheridan Rd. Waukegan IL 60085 423 W. 2nd 8914-12-177-004 0.18 225.00$                 40.50$                   2.9 43.00$   126.08$            2.9 95.00$           279.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          10.0 5.75$           57.50$         574.84$                    

54 Josh Harding 523 W. 4th St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 121 Franklin 8914-12-177-003 0.30 225.00$                 67.50$                   4.5 43.00$   194.88$            4.5 95.00$           431.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       16.0 5.75$           92.00$         918.68$                    

55 Jeremy L. Kieffer 322 Tremont St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 322 Tremont 8914-12-185-008 0.36 225.00$                 81.00$                   5.7 43.00$   246.48$            5.7 95.00$           545.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       20.0 5.75$           115.00$       1,120.78$                

56 Mark Clay 420 W. 4th St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 420 W. 4th 8914-12-326-001 0.15 225.00$                 33.75$                   2.3 43.00$   100.28$            2.3 95.00$           222.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          8.0 5.75$           46.00$         473.79$                    

57 Derick Rogers 2026 Richard Rd. Cedar Falls IA 50613 426 W. 5th 8914-12-331-001 0.34 225.00$                 76.50$                   5.2 43.00$   224.98$            5.2 95.00$           498.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       18.2 5.75$           104.65$       1,036.93$                

58 Cedar Falls Historical Society 303 Clay St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 308 W. 3rd 8914-12-186-003 0.30 225.00$                 67.50$                   4.5 43.00$   194.88$            4.5 95.00$           431.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       16.0 5.75$           92.00$         918.68$                    

59 Simmer Vollaro LLC 1171 Lawrence Ave. Westfield NJ 07090 307 Clay 8914-12-186-004 0.22 225.00$                 49.50$                   2.8 43.00$   120.40$            2.8 95.00$           266.42$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          10.0 5.75$           57.50$         565.03$                    

60 Simmer Vollaro LLC 1171 Lawrence Ave. Westfield NJ 07090 309 Clay 8914-12-186-004 0.30 225.00$                 67.50$                   5.0 43.00$   215.00$            5.0 95.00$           475.42$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       17.6 5.75$           101.20$       991.87$                    

61 Maka Properties LLC 907 Sheridan Rd. Waterloo IA 50701 501 Clay 8914-12-332-003 0.39 225.00$                 87.75$                   5.9 43.00$   255.08$            5.9 95.00$           564.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       20.8 5.75$           119.60$       1,159.73$                

62 SRE Holdings LLC 2110 Flynn Dr. Cedar Falls IA 50613 403 Washington 8914-12-328-003 0.10 225.00$                 22.50$                   5.7 43.00$   246.48$            5.7 95.00$           545.56$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.02 8,000.00$   123.08$       5.4 5.75$           31.05$         978.33$                    

63 Chris & Eaulla Saltzman 821 College St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 821 College 8914-11-478-005 0.19 225.00$                 42.75$                   2.8 43.00$   121.78$            2.8 95.00$           270.06$            0.0 225.00$   -$                   0.01 8,000.00$   61.54$          10.0 5.75$           57.50$         563.29$                    

63,091.05$                  

2023 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT

CITY PROJECT NUMBER SW-000-3301

Final Statement of Expenditures for Material and Labor

155

Item 41.



156

Item 41.



    ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: February 26, 2024 

SUBJECT:      Transfer of Lot 11, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V, City of 
Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 7.57 acres more or 
less) 

 
 
Staff would like to request that a public hearing be scheduled for March 18, 2024 to 
address the proposed transfer of the above referenced City owned real estate to 
Blackhawk Properties, LLC. The proposed project would consist of an approximate 
78,000 square foot building to be constructed along Innovation Drive in the West Viking 
Road Industrial Park. Additional information pertaining to the land transaction and the 
Agreement for Private Development will be provided to City Council prior to the public 
hearing. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
         
        
 
 
 

157

Item 42.



Hawkeye
Corrugated

Box

¨
1 " = 600 '

Bossard

S. 
Un

ion
 R

d

Air KingD. LaPorte

Project Location

W. Viking Rd

Inn
ov

ati
on

 D
r

Capital Way

Technology Pkwy

Venture Way

Blackhawk Properties, LLC
78,000 SF Industrial
Warehouse Facility

158

Item 42.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 268-5160 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING (1) TO CONSIDER 

ENTERING INTO A PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND BLACKHAWK 

PROPERTIES, LLC; AND (2) TO CONSIDER CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN CITY-

OWNED REAL ESTATE TO BLACKHAWK PROPERTIES, LLC, PURSUANT TO 

SAID PROPOSED AGREEMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received a proposal from 

Blackhawk Properties, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company (the “Developer”), to enter into a proposed 

Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement") between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 

Blackhawk Properties, LLC, on terms which include: 

 

(1) Conveyance of certain city-owned real estate legally described as consisting of all that 

certain parcel or parcels of land located generally in the City of Cedar Falls, County of 

Black Hawk, State of Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lot 11, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa (Contains 7.57 acres more or less); 

and  

 

(2) Entering into a Minimum Assessment Agreement whereby the minimum actual taxable 

value of the land and improvements to be constructed on the Development Property would 

be established at an amount not less than $6,873,360 for a period through December 31, 

2038; 

 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, as required by law, a hearing is to be held by the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, to consider entering into the proposed Agreement for Private Development and conveyance 

of the Development Property to the Developer pursuant to the terms of said Agreement.  

  

159

Item 42.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA, that a hearing be held on the 18th day of March, 2024, at 7:00 p.m., in the Council 

Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, to consider 

entering into a proposed Agreement for Private Development between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 

Blackhawk Properties, LLC, and to consider conveyance of the Development Property to the Developer 

on certain terms as set forth in the proposed agreement.  A copy of the proposed agreement is on file in 

the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish said notice of said 

public hearing. 

 

 

ADOPTED this ___ day of ______________, 2024. 

 

 

 

   

  Daniel Laudick, Mayor 
   

ATTEST:   
 
   

   

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk   

 

  

160

Item 42.



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) SS: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 

 

 

I, Kim Kerr, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above and foregoing 

is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _______________ duly and legally adopted by 

the City Council of said City on the ____ day of _______________, 2024. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of _________________, 2024. 

  

 

 

  

Kim Kerr 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

161

Item 42.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Thom Weintraut, AICP, Planner III 
 

 DATE: March 4, 2024 

SUBJECT: Adoption new Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) and supporting Ordinance 
Text Amendments (TA24-001) 

 
FEMA has just completed a revision and update to the community’s FIRMs and the revised 
maps are scheduled to take effect on May 8, 2024. As part of the adoption process, the City 
must amend its floodplain ordinance before the adoption date of May 8, 2024, to reference 
the new map panel numbers and adoption date.  
 
Any change to the City’s floodplain ordinance must be reviewed by the Iowa Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR) to insure the ordinance is up to date with current FEMA and State 
regulations. Staff worked with the Iowa Department of Natural Resources to update our 
regulations to meet FEMA requirements. Staff provided a copy of the City’s flood ordinance 
sections for DNR to review. DNR provided several updates that should be incorporated in the 
ordinance with the adoption of the map panel numbers and the adoption date. The updates 
reflect additional definitions that should be incorporated into the ordinance, clarification to 
existing definitions, the use of different terminology required by FEMA, further clarifies duties 
of the floodplain administrator, as well as the update to the FIRM panels and the adoption 
date.  
 
FEMA sets the minimum standards for participation in the National Flood Insurance Program 
(NFIP); however, communities are encouraged to participate in the Community Rating System 
(CRS) program which rewards communities that adopt more restrictive flood plain regulations 
and securing insurance discounts for anyone who is required to carry flood insurance as part of 
a federally backed mortgage. The City of Cedar Falls is one of eleven Iowa communities that 
participates in the program and one of only two communities in Iowa where property owners 
receive a 25% discount on flood insurance for the required insurance policies due to the City’s 
more stringent floodplain regulations.  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on these amendments on 
Wednesday, February 28, 2024, and is expected to make a recommendation to the City Council. 
However, with the Council packet being published earlier in the day on February 28, it is not 
possible to include the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation in this memo.  
 
 

162

Item 43.



Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends that the City Council set a date of public hearing for March 18, 2024, for the 
adoption of the new Flood Insurance Rate Maps and the supporting ordinance text amendments.  
 
The full staff report, minutes, and details on the proposed amendments will be included in the 
March 18th Council packet.  
 
 
 
 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E. City Administrator 

Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
 Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

163

Item 43.



 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

TO SUBSECTION 26-2(2) GENERAL FLOODPLAIN 

DEFINITIONS, SECTION 26-30 FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT 

PERMIT, SECTION 26-31 VARIANCES AND SPECIAL 

EXCEPTION PERMITS, SECTION 26-32 DEVELOPMENT 

REQUIRING APPROVAL BY STATE DEPARTMENT OF 

NATURAL RESOURCES, SECTION 26-35 FLOOD INSURANCE 

RATE MAP (FIRM), SECTION 26-119 ESTABLISHMENT OF 

FLOOPLAIN DISTRICTS, SECTION 26-176 F-W FLOODWAY 

OVERLAY DISTRICT, SECTION 26-177 F-F FLOODWAY 

FRINGE OVERLAY DISTRICT, AND SECTION 26-178 F-P 

GENERAL FLOODPLAIN OVERLAY DISTRICT  WITHIN 

CHAPTER 26, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS PART OF THE 

ADOPTION OF NEW FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAPS. 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission has 

recommended approval of amendments to the Zoning Code to adopt revised flood insurance rate 

maps (FIRMS) and associated amendments to the City’s floodplain regulations as deemed 

necessary by FEMA and the Iowa Department of Natural Resources to continue participation in 

the National Flood Insurance Program.  

 

There will be a public hearing to consider the proposed ordinance amendments at 7:00 o’clock p.m. on 

March 18, 2024, at the Cedar Falls City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls. Said meeting will be 

conducted in person. Directions on how to participate in the meeting will be included in the 

meeting agenda, which will be available on the city web site at www.cedarfalls.com. Said request 

is now on file in the office of the City Clerk in the City Hall in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 

is available for reference and inspection by the public.  Comments on the proposed ordinance 

amendments may be made in writing at any time prior to the public hearing as set forth herein and 

oral comments will be heard at said hearing. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

           Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

164

Item 43.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/


165

Item 44.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
DAILY INVOICES FOR 03/04/24 COUNCIL MEETING



166

Item 44.



167

Item 44.



168

Item 44.



169

Item 44.



170

Item 44.



171

Item 44.



172

Item 44.



173

Item 44.



174

Item 44.



175

Item 44.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
COUNCIL INVOICES FOR 03/04/24 MEETING



176

Item 44.



177

Item 44.



178

Item 44.



179

Item 44.



180

Item 44.



181

Item 44.



182

Item 44.



183

Item 44.



184

Item 44.



185

Item 44.



186

Item 44.



187

Item 44.



188

Item 44.



189

Item 44.



190

Item 44.



191

Item 44.



192

Item 44.



193

Item 44.



194

Item 44.



195

Item 44.



196

Item 44.



197

Item 44.



198

Item 44.



199

Item 44.



From: Gil.Schultz <Gil.Schultz@cedarfalls.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, February 20, 2024 12:33 PM 
To: Danny Laudick <Danny.Laudick@cedarfalls.com> 
Cc: Jim Newcomb; Ron Gaines <Ron.Gaines@cedarfalls.com>; Kim Kerr <Kim.Kerr@cedarfalls.com> 
Subject: March 4th Council Meeting agenda item 
  

Mayor, 
As a follow up to our conversation regarding the speed limit on Center Street between 
Lone Tree Road to Clair Street being a continuous 25 mph, I will not be putting in a 
referral but as we discussed will ask that you put it on the agenda and when you have 
meetings with council representatives and others inform of them of the rationale and 
neighborhood consensus.   
Otherwise, we'll need a work session, traffic study, etc.... 
Thanks, GIL 
 

200

Item 45.

mailto:Gil.Schultz@cedarfalls.com
mailto:Danny.Laudick@cedarfalls.com
mailto:Ron.Gaines@cedarfalls.com
mailto:Kim.Kerr@cedarfalls.com


201

Item 46.



202

Item 46.


	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes 2-19-24
	240219MINUTES

	Item 1.	PH - 2024 Street Restoration Project
	1. Memo PH - 2024 Street Restoration
	2. Estimate

	Item 2.	Ord. 3049-Cemetery Section
	1. Cem Ord 2 5 24
	2.Cemetery Ordinance (Final)

	Item 3.	Ord. 3050-West 27th Street speed limit
	1. Memo - 27th Road Speed Limit Ordinance
	2. Ord.-27th Road Speed Limit Ordinance
	3. Sec._23_300.___Lawful_speed_limits_established REDLINE

	Item 4.	Committee Minutes 02/19/2024
	2024-02-19_COW Minutes_FINAL

	Item 5.	Tobacco Permits 03/04/2024
	03042024 Tobacco Application

	Item 6.	Retail alcohol 3-4-24
	Retail alcohol 3-4-24

	Item 8.	CF Local Housing Trust Fund-Beecher
	1. Housing Trust Fund Memo-Kevin
	Beecher Proposal - CF Local Housing Trust Fund - 2-13-24

	Item 9.	Iowa Arts Council
	IowaArtsCouncil _CLP_02262024

	Item 10.	Memo & P on P-Brad Jacobson State Farm
	Memo - Panthers on Parade - SponsorAgreement
	Brad Jacobson State Farm- Panthers on Parade

	Item 11.	Panthers on Parade-Brent Dahlstrom/FIT Courts
	Brent Dalhstom FIT Courts- Panthers on Parade

	Item 12.	Panthers on Parade-Cedar Valley Arboretum
	Cedar Valley Arboretum- Panthers on Parade

	Item 13.	Panthers on Parade-Cedar Valley Dental
	Cedar Valley Dental- Panthers on Parade

	Item 14.	Panthers on Parade-College Hill Partnership
	College Hill Partnership- Panthers on Parade

	Item 15.	Panthers on Parade-Community Bank & Trust
	Community Bank & Trust- Panthers on Parade

	Item 16.	Panthers on Parade-First Bank
	First Bank- Panthers on Parade 

	Item 17.	Panthers on Parade-GreenState Credit Union
	Greenstate CU- Panthers on Parade

	Item 18.	Panthers on Parade-Hansen's Dairy
	Hansen's Dairy- Panthers on Parade

	Item 19.	Panthers on Parade-Hy-Vee
	HyVee- Panthers on Parade

	Item 20.	Panthers on Parade-JCAM Properties
	JCAM Properties- Panthers on Parade

	Item 21.	Panthers on Parade-John Deere
	John Deere- Panthers on Parade

	Item 22.	Panthers on Parade-Martin Bros.
	Martin Brothers- Panthers on Parade

	Item 23.	Panthers on Parade-Peters Construction Corp.
	Peters Construction- Panthers on Parade

	Item 24.	Panthers on Parade-SCHEELS
	SCHEELS- Panthers on Parade

	Item 25.	Panthers on Parade-Soifer Family McDonald's
	Soifer McDonalds -Panthers on Parade

	Item 26.	Panthers on Parade-Structure Real Estate
	Structure Real Estate- Panthers on Parade

	Item 27.	Panthers on Parade-The Brass Tap
	The Brass Tap-Panthers on Parade

	Item 28.	Panthers on Parade-UNI
	UNI- Panthers on Parade 

	Item 29.	Panthers on Parade-UNITE Credit Union
	UNITE CU- Panthers on Parade

	Item 30.	Panthers on Parade-Urban Pie
	Urban Pie- Panthers on Parade

	Item 31.	Panthers on Parade-Veridian Credit Union
	Veridian- Panthers on Parade

	Item 32.	Panthers on Parade-Western Home Communities
	Western Home Communities- Panthers on Parade

	Item 33.	Panthers on Parade-Witham
	Witham- Panthers on Parade

	Item 34.	Encroachment Agreement-College Hill Partnership
	Memo - Panthers on Parade - Encroachment
	Encroachment-CHP-POP

	Item 35.	Encroachment Agreement-Community Bank & Trust
	Encroachment -CB&T-POP

	Item 36.	Encroachment Agreement-Structure Real Estate
	Encroachment-Structure-POP

	Item 37.	Encroachment Agreement-The Brass Tap
	Encroachment-The Brass Tap-POP

	Item 38.	Panther West-Development Agreement
	1. CC Resolution Panther West Master plan and developmental procedures agreement
	2. Exhibit A - RP MasterPlan
	3. Exhibit B - Signed Development Agreement

	Item 39.	Swift Current Grant
	1_Memo Approving entering into Agreement for grant

	Item 40.	2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project-Final
	1. Final Out Memo - 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project
	2.Pay Estimate #3 - Retainage Release
	3.Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond - Signed
	4.Lien Waivers

	Item 41.	Final Statement of Expenditures - 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 1
	1. Memo - 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Breakdown
	2. Breakdown of Expenditures - 2023 Assessment Final
	3. Sidewalk Zone Map

	Item 42.	Set PH-Blackhawk Properties
	1_Memo to Council Setting Date of Public Hearing 03-04-24
	2_Site Map
	3_Res Setting Date of Public Hearing - Blackhawk Properties, LLC

	Item 43.	Ord.-Floodplain Amendments
	CC_Memo_Flood_Map_Adoption
	CC PH Ntc 3-19-2024 - Floodmap Adoption and related amends to zoning code.

	Item 44.	Bills and Claims
	1 Daily Invoices 030424
	2 Council Invoices 030424

	Item 45.	Referral-Speed limit-Center St.
	Gil Referral

	Item 46.	Referral-Tuesday Council Meetings
	Kruse Referral

	Bottom



